STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

TDD Access: Relay NH \)&
1-800-735-2064

COMMISSIONER
Jared S. Chicoine
Tel. (603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
Christopher J. Elims, Jr. FAX No. 271-1526
Website:
www . energy.nh.gov

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
21 8. Fruit St,, Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

July 10, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House:

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., Berlin, NH
(Vendor #177195), to supplement the Agency’s Building Weatherization Program by increasing the
price limitation by $150,000 from $666,928 to $816,928 using additional Low-Income Home Energy
Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds, from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families and by extending the completion date from September 30,
2024 to December 31, 2024, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The original
contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on December 21, 2022, Item #61, and
amended on September 20, 2023, ltem #95. 100% Federal Funds

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY2025

02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $150,000
EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy’s (US DOE) grant
guidance (10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies (CAA) preferred status for the
Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of
services to clients eligible for WAP, and their historical performance delivering the weatherization

program.

The Department is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization
Assistance Program (WAP). The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the
impact of energy costs in low-income households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled,
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households with children, and households with high-energy usage. The funding in this contract will
supplement WAP work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract
will allow the Community Action Agency to effectively and efficiently increase the number of homes
receiving heating system improvements and/or weatherization services in the program year which
begins upon G&C approval. The Department estimates that approximately 19 additional homes will
be assisted in the CAA’s service area as a result of the additional funding,

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract. '

Respectfully submitted,

ared S. Chicoine
Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: BUILDING WEATHERIZATION PROGRAM (BWP) CONTRACT
TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC

AMENDMENT #2

This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
“State’") and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos
County, NH 03570 (hereinafter the “Contractor™).

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”), as approved by
Governor and Council on December 21, 2022, Item #61, and amended on September, 20,2023,
Item #95, the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions
specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as
specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of September 30, 2024 and inserting in place
thereof the date of December 31, 2024,

B) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $666,928 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of

$816,928.

C) Exhibit C — Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $666,928 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
3816,928.

D) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$33,346 and inserting for administrative costs $40,846.

Award No.: 230INHLIEA; Award Date: 11/01/22 Contractor Initials:
ALN: 93.568 Date:
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Page 1%of 2




E) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$633,582 and inserting for program costs $776,082.

2) Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by

the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below.,

Date: (.é ‘f H if;&f

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
NH Department of Energy

Date: la‘ﬁﬂﬂ : L
(Name & Title of PersofiMiuthorized to Sign)

Teatht Robillard, Onef Evevrtwe Ok

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/11/2024 )
Date: W_’q
Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

Award No.: 2301NHLIEA; Award Date: 11/01/22 Contractor Initials:
ALN: 93.568 Date:
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ' Page 2 of 2



State of New Hampshire
. Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in
New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. 1 further centify that alt fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s ofTice have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business [D: 63020
Certificate Number: 0006652662

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be aflixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this Ist day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, __Sandy Alonzo , hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected board chair of __Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _June 27th , 2023__, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
{Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard CEO and or Randall Pilotte CFO (may list more than one person)
{Name and Title of Contract Signatory) i

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. _ to enter into contracts or agreements

with the State
{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of ils agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repeated and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authorily remains ‘valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further cerlify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position({s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: b L‘ Z [gﬁ

Name: Sandy Xlonzo
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



L
A‘ CORD’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o

01/03/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificats holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to tha certificate holder in lteu of such.andorsement(s).

PRODUCER Eﬁg\cr Susan Sullivan
Cross Insurance-Manchaster [ PHOWE ~ (803) 669-3218 T N, (603} 645-4331
1100 Eim Street ML 5. manch.cens@crossagency.com
INSURER(S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INSURER & - Philadelphia indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED INSURER B : ‘Cranite State Health Care and Human Services Self-
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc INSURER C :
30 Exchange Street NSURER D :
INSURER E :
Berlin NH 03570 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  23-24 All 23-24 WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABGVE FCR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

KDL SUBH “BOLICYEFF | PO!
iy TYPE OF INSURANCE 145D | wvp FOLICY NUMBER (MMDONY YY) ;uuﬂ%ﬁﬁ) LIMITS
| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1.000.000
) [ DANEGE TO RENTE!
| cLamismae [E 0CCUR PREMISES (Fa oorunence) | 5 _100:000
MED EXP {Any one person) 3 5.000
A PHPK2571941 0710172023 | 0710172024 | pereona s aovioury | s 100,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3.000.000
POLICY e Loc PRODUCTS - coMPIOPAGG | s /000,000
OTHER: Professiona! Liabllity s 1,000,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY e SLEEMT $ 1,000,000
D Ay AUTO BOOILY INJURY (Per parson) | §
OWNED SCHEDULED
A ALTOS ONLY AUTOS PHPK2571943 07/01/2023 | 0710172024 | BODILY INJIRY (Per sccident) | $
—| HIRED NON-OWNED FROPEATY DAMAGE s
|| auTos oy AUTOS ONLY | (Per accident)
s
UMBRELLA LIAB X ocour EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 2,000,000
A | (| ExCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE PHUBB70544 07/01/2023 | 07/01/2024 | \oarecate s 2,000,000
oep_| X< rerenmion 3 10.000 ' s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER oI
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY T > Sthne | [ R T
8] | e e R AT VESE CUTRE m HCHS 20240000575 {3a.) NH 010172024 | 01/01/2025 |E4-EACHACCIDENT ¥ e
1.000,000
(Mandatory In NH) : E.L DISEASE - EaEmprovee | s 1.000.
It yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS batow E.L DiSEASE - PoucY LT | s 1000,

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS { VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required}
Refer to policy for exclusionary andorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

NH Department of Ensrgy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

21 South Frult St., Ste. 10
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord NH 03304 WWD
]

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights raserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/02) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
’ 0 SEP05'23 py 2114 RCUADD Access: Retay NH

COMMISSIONER
Jared S, Chicoine 1-800-735-2064
Tel. {603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER -
Christopher J. Ellms, Jr. ‘ FAX No. 271-1528
Website:
www.onergy.nh.gov

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
21S.FnitSt. Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

September 20, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honoreble Council
State House

Concord, New l-Iampslnre 03301

UES ON

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., (VC
#177195), Belin, NH, to supplement the Agency’s Weatherization Assistance Program by increaging
the price limitation by $550,000 from $116,928 to $666,928 using additional Low-Income Home
Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families and by extending the completion'date from December 31,
2023 to September 30, 2024, effective upon Govemor and Executive Council approval. The original
contract was approved by Govemnor and Executive Council on December 21, 2022, Item #61.

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the ava:lablhty and contmued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

ew Hampshi t of ] Assistance FY2024
02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587 '
Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $550,000
EXPLANATIO

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy’s (US DOE) grant
guidance (10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the
Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of
services to clients eligible for WAP, and their historical performance delivering the weatherization
program.

The Department is responsible for administering New Hampshire’s statewide Weatherization
Assistance Program (WAP). The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the
impact of energy costs in low-income households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled,
households with children, and households with high-energy usage. The funding in this contract will
supplement WAP work.

Pegelof2 G&C Y2000



The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract
will allow the Community Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of
homes receiving heating system improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year
which begins upon G&C approval. The Dcpartment estimates that approximately 69 additional
homes will be assisted in the CAA’s service area as a result of the supplemental funding. -

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Jared Chictine
Commiss_ioncr

Page 20f2 G&C 97202023



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: BUILDING WEATHERIZATION PROGRAM (BWP) CONTRACT
TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. -

AMENDMENT

_This Amendment dated August i4, 2023, is between the State of New Hampshire
Department of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 0330t
(hereinafier referred to as the “State™) and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30
Exchange Strect, Berlin, Coos County, NH 03570 (hercinafier referred to as the “Contractor™).

~ Pursuant to an Agreement (hercinafter referred to as the “Agrcement”), as approved by
Governor and Council on December 21, 2022 (Ttem #61) the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Scrvices, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agrcement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument exccuted by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Govemor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The Siate and the Contractor have agreed 1o amend the Agreement in certain
rcspects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

R Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and

modified as follows:

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $116,928 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$666,928,

B) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of December 31, 2023 and inserting in place -
thereof the date of September 30, 2024,

Q) Exbibit C — Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by

striking the current sum of $116,928 and inserting in place thercof the
total sum of $666,928.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of $5,846
and inserting for administrative costs $33,346.

TCCA Amendment Contractor Lnitials: W

Gronts: 2J0INHLIEA Dare: g1
CFDA: 93,568 Page | of 3




CONTRACT AMENDMENT
NH DEPT. OF ENERQY

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of -
$111,082 and inserting for program costs $633,582.

D) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to “upon Governor
and Council approval through September 30, 2024.”

E) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to *‘upon Govemnor and Council
approval through September 30, 2024.”

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as sbcciﬁcally amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder

shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hcreunto set their hands as of the day and year first
above written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
NH Depgriment of Fasit

_{Jared Chicoinc, Commissioner

ounty Community Action Program, Inc.

Randall Pilotte, CFO

State of _Naw Wawmesn. g,

County of {05

Onthis 1™ day of __Pusgs 2023, before me, Che.sng Mann he
undersigned officer, personally appeared _Rendall £ inbhe , who acknowledged
himself/herself to be the CFO of Tri : Community Action

Inc., a corporation, and that he/she, being suthorized so to do, exccuted the foregoing instrument
for the purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, | hereunto set my hand and official seal.
CHRISTINA MORIN, Notary Pubhic

_Su!a of New Hampshire
My Cmmnﬁon Expires Decamber 10, 2023

My Commission expires:  1@/14/7>

TCCA Amendment Contrector initals: __ |
Grents: 230INHLIEA Dare: _E|
CFDA: 93.568 Page 2 0f3




CONTRACT AMENDMENT
NH DEPT, OF ENERGY

Approved as to form. execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

b

Assistant Attormney General

9/1/2023
Date:

1 hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Govemnor and Council of the

State of New Hampshirc at their meeting on

TCCA Amendment
Grats: 230INTILIGA
CFDA: 93.568

: , 2023,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date;

Costracior Initials: _[L_@p

>
Page Jof }



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

[, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is o New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation regisiered to transact business in
New Hampshire on May 13, 1965. I further cenify that all fees and documents required by the Seerctary of State’s office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTice is concerncd.

Business ID: 63020
Cenificote Number: 0006195524

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto sct my hand end cause 10 be aflixed
the Seal of the Siate oI'Nc'w Hampshire.
this dth day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Scererary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Sandy Alonzo , hereby cerlify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signalory)

1.1 am & duly elected board chair of __Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. :
{Corporalion/LLC Name}

2. The following is a true copy of a vote laken at a meeting of the Board of Direclors/sharehoiders, duly called and
held on _June 27th , 2023__, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voling.
{Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robiltard CEQ and or Randall Pilotte CFO {may list more Lhan one parson)
{Name and TiUs of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behatf of Tei-County Community Action Program, Inc. _ to enter into contracts or agreements

with the State :
{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hamgshire and any of its agencles or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her Judgment be desirable or necessary to effecl the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contractcontract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is undersicod that the Stale of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currenily occupy he
position(s) indicaled and that they have full authorlty to bind the corporation. Te the extent hat there are any
limits on the authority of any lisled individual to bind the corporation in conlracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:__SJ_@\Q% _._ﬁﬂ/"bd‘"\v ﬂW
Signature of Electgd Officer  //
Name: Sandy Alortfo
- Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORD' DATE (MWODAYYTY)
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE ==

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPQN THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERlS) AUTHORIZED
REPRESF.NTA“VE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: H the certficete holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED pravisions or be ondorsed.
If SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to ths tarnms 2nd conditdons of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statemsnt on
this certificate doos net confer rights to the certificata holder in feu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTALT 51 een Sullvan <
Cross Insursace-banchesier | PO,y (603)809-3218 | i+  woy(603) 645-4331
1100 Eimn Steet ﬂl& manch.carscrossagency.com
AER{I} AFFORDING COVEAAGE NAIC 8

Marches:er NH 03101 wurzma: Phiadelohis indemnity lns Co 18058
WIURED e g Miowest Empioyeny Cesusty Company 3612

Ti-County Comemunity Action Program, Inc MSURFR C ;

30 Exchange Srem e

' SISUREA % ;

8erin NH 03570 PeSURERF ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  23-24 All ines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE UISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERXD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REDUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED MEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
£XCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

T TT™ OF SrSRANCE peso PO rsmaen oo, | oYY s
D] COMMERCIAL CENERAL LIARAITY E:%“mmt 4 1.000,000
| cansaunce @ oKW | Prboyes 6 pomreny |3 100.000
] | MED DX (4 ona porser) | 3 5000
A ] PHPK25T1941 070172023 | 0712024 | pengonsns o rmy |3 11000.000
EN0. AGOREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: | GENERAL AGOREGATE Y 3,000,000
X rouey ) 70% [ iec 5. coumomraca_| 3 3:000.000
ONER: ” Professional Liabllly s 1,000,000
AUTGMOBAE LABRLITY 0, SICLE| LY s 1,000,000
2] Ay a0 DODILY HJUAY (Per penan) | §
[~ | owweD MEOULED
A || et onr fnns PHPK2571943 ) 070172023 | OTA1/2024 | BOOILY W IUAY (Per sccicem) | §
HAED ) €0 FROPERTY LAMMAlil F
|| auTos omy AUTOS DMLY
-
| ] weanELAuAS | DT oxxam _ EACH OCCURRENCE 5 2.000.000
A excessuan [ 1o mainge | PHUBS70344 0700112023 | OTV2024 | poorraatt 5 2.000.000
oo aerermon ¢ 10.000 i
WORKERS COMPERSATION PER TH-
AND EMPLOYERS UADRITY TN X 2 |5 T
PRIETONPARTNE 000,
G il e A L nin HCHS20230000575 (30.) NH 01012023 | 010172024 |EL EACHACCIOENT $
1,000,000
tandziory In KM) BL. ORSEASE -EACLLOYER 1§ -
1 yos. dedcon under 1,000,000
&mm EL. CXSEASE - POUCYLRaT | § 7N

CESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS /LOCATIONS / VERICLES [ACORD 101, Addiionsl Remarks Bthaduia, ray b risched i mers tpace 1 required}
Rafar 1o policy for sxclusionsry endorsements and special provisions.

" CERTIFICATE HOLOER CANCELLATION

BHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CAMCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

NH Depaniment of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

21 South Frult Si, See. W0
AUTHORIZED REPRSSENTATIVE

Concord NH 03301 M

|

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. AN rightl reserved.
ACORD 2% (2010703} Ths ACORD namwe snd logo ero registorod merks of ACORD




YTATE UF NEW HAMISHIRE

ek 'DECO7'22 Al 1:16 RCULTVG Acces ety hard
(O l Tel. (803) 2714!7'0
Chotstnpher J. EDms, Js. J FAX No. 771528
CEPARTMENT OF ENERGY T wewensnyhgov
21S. Frult St, Sulte 10 :
- Concord, N.H. 03301-2420
December 21, 2022
His Excellency, Governor Christopber T. Sununu
and the Honorable Cotmm]
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH Energy) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE
contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of
$116,928 to supplement the Agency's Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval through December 31, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.
(LIHEAP-US DHHS)

" Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the avm.labmty and continued
appropriation of funds in the opaaung budget, as fol.lows

i . | Assi FY2023
02-52-52-520010-33540000-074-500587
Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $116928

EXPLANATION
This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy’s (US DOE) grant

guidance

(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community. Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization
Assistance Program due 1o their non-profit status, théir role providing a range of services 10 clients
eligible for WAP, and their historical performance delivering the weatherization program.

NH Energy is responsible for administering New Hampshire’s statewide Weatherization Assistance

Progmm(WAP) Theobjecnvcofthcpmgmmlstoredmcmcrgyoonsumpuonmdtheunpmof
energy costs in low-income households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with

children, and households with high-energy usage. The funding in this contract will supplement WAP
work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract
will allow the Community Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of
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homes reoeiving heating system improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year
which begins upon G&C approval. NH Energy estimates that approximately 17 additional homes will
be assisted in the CAA's service area as a result of the supplemental funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longcr avmlablc, Gr.neral Funds will not be requestad to support this
contract.

] .Gomnussmncr

New Hhmpslurv: Department of Enetgy i =

»d
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i FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)
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Notice: This agreement and a0 of s srtachmeats sha ll become public upon sibmission 10 Govemorand
Executive Council forapproval Aay information that s private, confidenlin] or proprictary must
be clerddy identified to the agency snd agreed to v writing peiot 10 signing 1he contract,

AGREEMFENT
T'hc S1ate of New Hampshire snd the Conimctor heteby mutually Lgree ot foDows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. MENTIFICATION.

1.1 Statc Agency Namie 12 State Agency Address
New Hampehire Department nf Energy 21 S. Fruss Stree, Suine 10
. ; -Concord, NH 03301
1.} -Contnncror Name = 14 Conmcwr Address
Tr-County Community Action Propam, [nc. 30 Exchange St.ml. Berlin, N’H 03570
1.5 Contracior Phonc 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Compktion Date 1.8 " Price Linitation
Number, 02.52.52.520010-13 540000. Dccember M, 2023 . $116,92%
(603) 752.7001 .| 074-500587 3528WP1) i
1.9 Coalracting Officer for State Agency . 1.10 Ssa1e Agency Tekephone Number g
Xik Stone, Weatherization Progrem Maas ger {603)271-3670

1.12 Mame and Titke of Contractor Signatory
Jesane Robihrd.(hif Executive Offcer

1.14 Name and Tk of State Agency Stplloq
Jared Chicoine, Commissinger
New Hampshire Department of Coergy

Appwnlby the NH. Depanment of Admnistretion, Division of Personncl (if applicable)  +

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approvilby the:Aniomey Genens| (Form. Substance and Exceution) (if applicable)

By: on: 12/6/2022

1.17 Kaproval by the Govemor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Ttem number: CO\ ‘ . .G&C McelinlgDnt:: DEC 2 1 2022 )

SECRETARY OF STATE
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1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New
Hampshire; sciing (hrough the sgency entified in block 1.1
{“State™), eogages

work or sak of goads, of both, identified and more panticulary
descrided i the oiached EXHIBIT B which iy incorporied
heretn by reference (“Services™) )

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/OOMPLETION OF SERVICES.

. 3.1 Notwithstanding sny provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, ond subject to tbe approval of the Govemnor and
Exccutive Council of the Statc of New Hampshire, # opplice bk,
this Agreement, and el obligaiions ofthe pe aties hercunder,sball
become effective on the date the Covemor and Execulive
‘Councll approve this Agreement as indicated in biock 1.17,
unless no suchapprovelsrequired. én which casothe Agreement
shal become effective on the date the Agreemeat is signed by
the State Agency a5 shown id block 1.13 ("Effective Date™).
32 Uf the- Controctor commences the Services priot to the
Effective Date, sl Services performed by the Contractorprior to

_the Effective Date shal be performed ot the soko risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agrcement docs 1ot become
effzciive, tbe Siate shall have no lability to the Conlracter,
inchuding without timitatien, any obligation: to poy the
Caoomcior for any coms incumed or Services performed.

Cootractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date

specifisd b block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEMENT.
Notwithslanding any provision of ths Agrecment to the
conirery, s} obligations of the State hercunder, inchuding,
without Limlistion, the continusnce of paymeats hereunder, sre
cantingent upon the avaiability snd continued sppropriation of
funds o ffected by aoy stale or federal legisiative or exccutive

* setion that-reduces, elmiosies or otherwise modifies the
sppropristion or avadabilily of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Scrvices provided in EXHIBIT B, in whols or in
pont..In no event thall the State be liablz for any payments
hereunder i excess of such avaablk appropriated funds. Inthe
avent of » reduction” or iermination of eppropriated funds, the
Siste shal have the right to witbhoWd payment un1d such funds
became ovailable, if ever, and shaD bavo the right to reduce or
temminate the Services under this’ Agreement immedintely upan
giving the Contrector notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shafl not be requised to transfer funds from eny other
gccount of source to the Accoudnt identified in block 1.6 m the
event funds i that Account sre reduced of unavaibble.

8. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION
* PAYMENT.

5.1 The contractprite, method of payment, and terms of poyment
are Kentificd snd more particularty described n EXHIBIT C
which B incorporsted herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contracl price shell be the
only and the compkete reimbursement to the Contractor forel
expentcs, of whalsver nature incurred by the Coatractor i the
performance hercof, and shell be. tbe only ond the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.

contractor identificd @ blck 13
{“Contractor}io perfom, and the Contractar shall perform, the-

= "~  Pagelofld

5.3 The Stste reserves the right 1o offsel from any emous
otherwise poysbleto the Contraciorunder tht Agreement those
liquidsted smounts required of permitted by N.H. RSA 8027
through RSA 80:7< prany other provision of Liw. .
$.4 Notwihstanding sny provision i this Agreement to the
contrary, and atwithstanding unexpected ctumstances, ip 00
evéntshallthe totalof sD payments suthorized, oraciva lly made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limilstion sct forth in block 1.8

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS EQUAL EMPLOYMENT -

" OPPORTUMITY. ,

6.1 In tonnection with the performance of the Services, the '

Contnactor shell comply with all spplicable statates, Laws,
reguiations, end orders of fédersl, slote, county or municipal
suthorfics which impose any obligation or duly upon the
Contrsclor, including, bul oot limited to, civd rights snd equal
employment apponuaily bws. [osddition, if this Agreement is
funded in any psn by monies ofthe United States, the Contractar
shall comply with all federalexecutive odens, rules, regubations
#nd siatules, and wilh any roks, regulations snd guidelines asthe
State or the United Siates issue 10 implement these regulations,
The Controctorsha ll abo comply with all appbeable inteliestus)
propenty bws. -

6.2 During the 1erm of this Agreement, the Contrector shall not
discriminate sgainst employccs or applicasiy for employmen
because of mec, color, religion, crced, age, sex, haadicap, sexusl
oritntation, or nationalorigin'and will take s[Thmative action©
prevent such discrimination. g

accessto any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts far
the purpose of sscertaiding compliance with all rules, regulations
sod orders, snd the covenents, terms snd condiinos of this
Agreement.

e
7. PERSONNEL. ;
7.1 The Contrector siallot s own eapense provide afi perconnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contmactor wamonts that
oD pensonnel engaged i “the Services shal be quatificd to
perform the Services, snd thaD be properly tcensed and
otherwise suthorized to do so under allapplicable biwa,
7.2 Unkss otherwise suthorized in writing, during the torm of
this Agreement, end fof & period of six (6) mogths after ibe
Compklion Date in block 1.7, the Coniructor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcoatracior oz other person, fwm or
carporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services (o bire, any person whobs o Ststeemployer
or official, who is malerially involved in the précurement,
sdminisiration or performance of this Agreement.  Thi
provision shal) survive termination of this Agrecrent.
7.3 The Controcting Officer specificd v block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's represcnlative, {ntheeveat of any

dispute -conceming the Dterpretation of this Agreement, tha*

Controcting Officer's decision shallbe final for the State.

8 EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

- . Contrector fnitinh .y&
Date ,]‘?i?y

6.3, The Conltractor agrees 10 permis the State or United States

LR
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8.1 Any one or more of the following scts or omisvions of the
Contrectorshallconstitute an eveni of defsuh hereunder {MEven
of Defsuh™:

8.).1 feilure to perform the Scrvices saiisfactorily or on

schedule; . . .

§.1.2 fadure to submit any repon required bereunder, ond/or
8.1.3 fvikure to perform eny athercovennni, term orcandition of
Lhis. Agreement.

_ 8.2 Upon the occarrence of any Evenl ofbefluh. the State may.
take any one, of more, or all, of the following s cuoRs:

82.} give the Contractors wrikten notice specifying 1be Event of
Defauh and requiring it to beremedied within, in the sbteace of
s preater or kesser specification of timc, thity (30) days from the
dateofthe ootice: and if the Eventof Defuult iy nol timely cured,
terminetc this Agreement, effective two (2) daysafer giving the
Contracier nolice of tesmination;

§.2.2-give the Contrctors written notice specifying the Event of
Defaul and suspending a0 poyments to be made under \his
Agreement sod ordering that the partion of the conmcl pricc
which would otherwise secrue 6 the Contractor during the

period from the datc of such notice until such tonc ssthe Stale |

determines thet the Contractdr has cured the Event of Defauh
shall never be paid to the Contracion,

8.2:3 give the Contractors written notice specifying the Eventof

Defouk and set off egainst any other obligations the State may
owo to the Cantractofany damages the State mulfers by ressn of
sny Event of Defach; and/or ap

8.1.4 give the Contractore written notice specifyisig the Eventaf
Defeud,’ treat the Agremeni as breached, teminaie the
Agreement and pursuc sny of its reredics ot law or in equity, or
both. g ’ g

8.3. No foidure by the Ststeto enforce any provisions heeeof afer
any Eventof Defoul shall be déemed o waiver of ils rights with
regars to that Event of Defauh, or eny subscquent Eveat of
Default. No express foilure 1o enforce any Eveatof Defaul shed
be deemed s waiver of the right of the Stale o enforce cach end
oD of the provigions bercof upon sny further of oider Event of
Defauh on the part of the Contracior. '

9. TERMINATION. -

Y Notwitkstending parsgraph 8, the State mey, 81 its sok

discrction, terminsic the Agreement for any reasos, & whok or
in par, by (hity (30) days wiitten notice to the Contractor that
the Siate is cxercising its option to terminaie the Aprement.,

2 1n the event of an carly termination of this Agreement for”

any reagon other thao the, complktion of-!he Services, the
Contractor shalfl at the State’s discretion, deliver to the

Contracling Officer, notaterthan fileen (13) daysafierthe date.

of aermination, & report (“Termination Repont™) descrbing in
detsil 8D Services performed, and the contrect price camed, to
snd irchuding the dste of termination. The form, subject matier,
content, and oumber of copies of the Termimation Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the sttached
EXHIBIT B. Innddiion, st the Suaie 'sdiscretion, the Contractor
shall, within 1'$ éaysof noticc of carly termpination, develop snd
submil to ihe Stale a Transition Pon for scrvices under the

- Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION. -

Pagclof4 .

10.1 As used in this AgTement, the word “deta” shallmeen all
infarmation snd things developed or obtaived during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reasoh of, this
Agreemen), inchding, but not imited to, all studies, reporta,
files, formulas, surveys, mopy, charls, sound recondingy, video
recordings, piciorial reproductions, drawingy, analyses, grpbic
fepreEtnin fions, COM puler programa,; computes printouts, potes,
kiters, memorsnds, papers, snd documents, ell whether
finished or unfinished.

102 AD dats and any property which has been received from
1he State o purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shal be the propeny of tho Staie, ond
she D be rerumed 1o the Sinie upon demand or upos iermination
of 1his Agreement forany reason.

10.3 Confidentialiry of dste shall be governed by NH. RSA
chapier 91-A orother existing bw. Disclosurc of dats reqiires
prior written epprovalof the Statc.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. !ntbe .
performance of this Agreement the Conlrscior is @ all respects ©

on independent contractor, snd & neither an agenl nor oo
employce of the State. Neither the Contractor nor sny of iy
officens, cmphiyees, agents or members shall bave authorily o

bind e State orreceive any benefis, worken® compeosation ov | .

other emolumests provided by the State to s employces. -

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATIONSUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall nol sxign, or otherwize tansfer any

interest in this Agreemest without Whe prior writien ootice, which

shall bo provided to 1be State ot leant fifteen (15) days prior to
the acsignment, and » writlen consent of the State. For purposcs
of this pangraph, s Chenge of Control shell constitute

assignment. "Change of Conmtrol" medns (s) menger,

consolidation, ot o transaclion orscrics ofrelated traniaciionsin
which o third panty, together with its affiiates, becomes the

direc) of indirect owner af fifly percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares'or eirmilar equity inlercats, or corbined voting

power of the Contra ctor, or (b) the ssle of allor substantisDyeD

of the assets'of the Contructor.

12.2 Nonc of the Services thall be subcontracied by the
Contracior without prior wrirten notice and consent of ihe State.

Tho Stste is entitied Lo copics of all subconimcts and sssignment

agreemeats 5nd sha l notbe bound by xny provisions cantained

in 8 subcontract o 80 assignment agreement to which b is nots

party.

33:INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by iw,
the Conumcior shall mdemaify and hokd hamaless tho State, ity
officers nad croployees, from and sgainst ooy and al chims,
tabiitics and cons for any personalidjury or property dsma goa,
patent or copyright infringement, orotherclaims esserted o gains
the State, its officers or employecs, which arise out ol (or which
may be claimed to arise, out of) the acis or omission of the
Contractor, or subcontractors, inchiding but not liniited to the
negligence, reckless-or iatentions] conduct. The State shalnod
be liable for any costs incurred by the Coolractor arising under
this peragraph | 3. Notwithstanding(he foregoing, nothing herein

contsined shalbe deemed to constituic » waiverof the sovercign

immunity 6fthe State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the

" Contractor Initials O3
Dite i



* msumnce policy.

Statc. Tha covenant in persgraph 13 ghell gurvive the
termination of this Agreement.

' 14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall st its sole expense, oblain and
continvously maintsin i force, ond shall requie any
rubcontraclor of ossignee. to obtain and maintain in force, the
following nsursnce: .

14.1.1 commercid) genere) lisbiliry insurance oganst ol ¢laims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amouois af not
ko then $1,000,000 per'occum:n:e snd 52,000,000 aggregate
orexgess, end

14.1-F special cause of bu covers ge forn covering sil propeny
tubject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an nmount not less than
£0% of tb¢ whok replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparmgreph 14.1 hercin shall be

" on policy formsend endonementsapprovid foruse m the Steie

of Now Hempsbire by the NH. Depoaiment of Ingureace, vod
istucd by insurers Ucensed m the State of New Hampshire,

- 143 The Contriclor shall fumish 1o the Contrmcting Officer

identified in block 1.9, orhis or her successor, » centificate(s) of
insurance for sfl insumace required under thia Agreement.
Controctorgha lako fumish to the Contracting Of ficer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, centificate(s) of msurwnce
for ol renewa I(3) of insursnce required underthis Agreement no
biter thon ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
The certificate(s) of surance and sny
renewals theceaf sha D be sttached gnd erc incorporated herein by
welerence.

.13, \VORJCEBS‘ COMPENSATION,

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and womnisthatthe Contmctorisin campliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of NH. RSA chapler281-A ("Workers'
Compenguation”). )

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject lo the requiremenis
of NHK. RSA chapter 281-A, Contracior shall maia, end
require 2ny subcontrector Or assignec to secure ond mointsi,
payment of Werkers' Compensalion i conncclion with
activities which the person proposes to underiake pursuanilo this
Agreement. The Contractorsha Dl fumishihe Contmaciing Officer
idcatified in block 1.9, orhis or her successor, prool of Workers'
Compensation in- the ‘manner described in NH. RSA chapur
281-A and any applicablo renewdl(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and sre incorporated herein by reference. The Siate
sholl not be rerponsibk for payment of ony Worken'
Compensation premivms or for any other clakm or benefh for
Conirctor, of sny subcooimcior or employee of Contractor,
which might srise under spplicable Siate of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation bws © coanection with the
performance of 1he Servides under this Agreement.

18. NOTICE. Any nofice'by s panty bereto 10 the olherb_nny
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given sithetime

. ® -

Page 4 of 4

B

of malling by cenified rmad, postage prepaid, in @ United States

. Post Office sddressed to the partics o1 the nddmm given i

blocks 1.2 and | .4, berein,

17. AMENDMENT. This Agrecmem may be emended, wa ived

or discharped oaly by an instument & writing signed by ‘the,
pertics hereto and only after spprovel of such amendment,

waiver or discharge by the Govemor end Executive Council of
the State of New Heampshire unlkess no such approvsl s required

under lht circumsiances pursuant 10 State hw. nule o7 policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shnﬂ
be govemed, interpreted and constiued & accondance with the
tows of the Siate of New Hampshire, and & binding vpon end
inures 1o the benefit of tho partics and their rerpeciive successors
sndastigns. The wording ysed in thiy Agreement b the wonding
chosen by the panties 10 expresa their mutualmtent, andno ke
of cohstruction sholl be applicd againstor in fovoxof spy patty.
Any sctions erising out of this Agreernent thall be brought and
maiained m New Hompshire Superior Court-which sha have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of 2 coallict

. between the terms of this P-37 form (a8 modificd in EXHIBIT

A) sad/orsttachmenys sndamendment theseof, the terms of the

- P37 {as modiled in EXH!BITA) shall control.

10 THIRD PARTIES. The panies hereto do not intend to
beneld eny third pories and this Mumcnl sha@ oot bo
consirued to confer any such benefi.

11. HEADINGS. The hesdings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained thersin
shall in noway be held to exphiin, modify, emplify oraid in the
interpretation, construction ot meaningof the provisions of this

Agreement.

12: SPECIAL PROVISIONS.  Addilions) or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBITAnrc lncorponmd
herein by refercace. .
“and

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthccventony of the provitionsofibis
Agreemen) are held by a coun of compct:nl;umdmm lobe

contrary 1o any #late ot federal biw, the emading provisions of -

this Apvccmcm will remain in full foree and effect, g
14. ENTIRE ACR.EEMENI’ Thb Agreement, which may be
exccuted in 8 number of counterpans, each of which shall be
deemed mo originel, constitutes the enloe sgeement and
understanding between the panies, ond supersedes ali prior
egreemnenis ond understandings with respect to the subject sy
hereol.

¥

| /
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7 NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROYISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200, as amended, (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Addit
Requirements for Federal Awerds), 10 CFR 440dated February 1, 2002 (Westherization Assistence
Program), the New Hampshire Weatherization Assisiance Progrem (NHWAP) Sute Plon, NHWAP
Policies and Procedures Manual (P& PM), ond NHWAP Field Guide are all considered part of this
contract by inclusion andshell be legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract.

* The New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH Energy) reserves theright to use any legal remedy
stits disposal including, butnotlimited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension
of agency personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment ol ngencies and/or subcontractors
from present or futurecontracts, and suchother lege! remedics ssdetermined to be appropriste by tie
New Hampshire Department of Justice in the enforcement of rules and regulations perigining 1o the
Weatherization Progrem. . -

2. An sudit shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200,
Subpart F - Audit Requirements. This sudit report shall include a schedule of revenues and
expenditures by contract or grant numberof ali expenditures during the Contrector's fiscal yeer. The
Contractor shall utilize » competitive bidding process to choose s qualified financisl auditor at least
every four years. : : a

The sudit report shall include a schedule of the prior year's questioned costs slong with 8 response

regarding the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters

written as a result of the audit slong with the audit report shall be forwarded to the NH Energy within

. onemonthof the time of receipt by the Contractor accompaniod by sn ection, if applicable, for each
~ finding or questioned cost. i i

3. The following paragraph shall-be added to paragraph 9 of the genersi provisions:

“9.3 All negotiated contracts (excep! those of $5,000 or less) awarded by the-New Hampshire
Dcpantmentof Energy to the Contractor shalt allow the New Hampshire Department of Encrgy, the
US Depertment of Energy, Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General of the United States,
or eny duly suthorized representatives scoess to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Subgrentee or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purpose of
meking sudits, examinations, excerpts, and transeriptions,”

4.' The costs charged under this contract shell be determined as sllowable under the cost pricciples
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principals. E : .

5. Progrem and financial records peruining to this contract shetl beretained by the NH Energy ond the
Contrector for 3 (three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure repon ot, for
awards that are renewed quanterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or
annue! financial repory, a5 stated in 2 CFR 200.334 - Retention Requirements for Records.

Exhidit A
= Page | of2
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6. CLO|SE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests sh'all be
submitted to the State within-forty-five (45) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).
7. The following paragraphs shall be added to the general provisions: '

“25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. Itis understood and agreed between the parties
that no portion of the “Grant” funds may be uscd for the purpose of obtaining sdditional federel funds
under any other law of the United States, except if suthorized under that law.”

«26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following sre sttached snd signed: Centification
Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Centification Regarding Lobbying, Certification
Regerding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Maren; Centification Regarding the
‘Americans With Disabilies Act Compliance; Centification Regarding Environmental Tobacco
Smoke; Assurence of Complisnce Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; end
Cerification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability end Transparency Compliance.”

.%27. COPELAND ANT(:KACKBACK ACT. All conirsctsand subgrants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction o7 repeir shall include o provision for compliance with Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act
(8 USC 874) a3 supplemented in Depariment of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act
provides that cach contractor, subcontrest or subgrantee shali be prohibited from inducmg, by any
means, any person employed in the construction, completion orrepair of public work, to give up eny

" part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to the New Hampshire Department of Encrgy.” ) )

«28. PROCUREMENT. Subgrenteeshsllcomply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 SubpartD - Post
Federsl Award Requirements — Procurement Standards with special emphasis on financiol
procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpart F = Audit Requirements) snd property management (2 CFR 200
Subpart D — Post Federal Award Requirements - Property Standerds.)” - '

»

. Exhidit A
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'NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY .
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Tri-County Commuaity Action Program, Inc. hereinafier “the Contractor,” agrees to utilize the Buitding
Wentherizetion Program (BWP) funds, which are the subject of this contract and which have their orign
in the feden! Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), toprovide eligible clients with
westlicrizotion services, including heating system repair and replacement services, which meet the.
requirements andsiandards for LIHEAP.wcatherization work as modified and approved in the FY2)
New Hampshire LIHEAP Suate Plan. In addition, s}l work completed using BWP funds will be in
accordance with the fiscal requirements of regulations set forthin 2 CFR 200 os amended, and will be
guided and implemented as directed by the NewHampshire Department of Energy (NH Energy} in this
contrect end, fromtime to time, in BWP Subgrantec Notices or other commumications. The Contractor
agrees to revise BWP practices and procedures to incorporate instructions from NH Energy.

Contrector agrees o incorporate changes o the NH Building Westhorization Program a3 prescribed by -
NH Energy to improve program delivery. Contractor further sgrees to perform all weatherization
servites in o menne that will successfully interact with utility administered enargy efficiency programs
for low income houscholds in order to-provide the best callaboretive services for those households.

." This BWP contract period, to be known as"BWP23," will commence upon approval of this ceatract by

the Govemor and Exccutive Council, and will have a completion date of December 31, 2023, also
subject to the spproval of the Governor and Executive Council.

BWP funds, which are the subject of this contract, shall not be expended for health and safety purposes.
However, in projects wherc BWP money is used without any fedcral Weatherization Assistance

Program (WAP) money involved - in other words, whae there is no money for the instailation of health
and safety measwres ~ thenthat BWP project may include the cost of incidental repairmensures (scethe

_ NH Policics and Procedures Manual) if, by so doing, the cumuletive SIR- for the entire praject is not

brought down te below |;

No portion of the BWP funding in this contract is set asidc for training end technical assistence
(T&TA). However, Contractor may choose to expend some or all of the designated edministrative
funds on T&TA activities. Appropriate back-up and justification for the usc of those funds will be
required by NH Energy prior to reimbursemeat.
. R |
During the contrect period, the Contractar sgrees 10 compicie weatherization servioes on the number of -
upits that is the result of dividing the Contractor’s PY23 BWP allocation by $6,500. NH Encrgy
understands that the actual numberof BWP completions will likely differ from thet number due w the
unpredictability of hesting system costs, etc., but NH Energy expects to see monthly BWP payment’
requests fromthe Contreclor in onder 1o monitor BWP spending progress. Unit completions will be
done to the standards and expectations preseated in LIHEAP weatherization guidance, this contract, and
the NH WAP Policies and Procedures Manual, 2019 cdition, section on BWP management.
8. The number ofdwellingunits and the omount of funds to be expended shall conform to the
provisions of this contrect. NH Energy reserves the right to review progress under this contract
steny time and mey utilize information from such reviews 1o atter dwelling unit goalsand funds

to be expended. N
. Exhidit B
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[} ’
b. All funds provided tothe Contmc(or under this agreemmlmusl beexpended by December 31,
2023,

6. Effective April I, 2015, all work performed under the federa) Weatherization Assistance Program
(WAP) in New Hampshsrc must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Depmmenl of
‘ Energy's Quahty Wotk Plen (QWP) end the essogiated Standerd Work Specifications (SWS). " While
wi, " BWPworkistobemanaged mostly under DOE rules, end is therefore not subject to all of the same
" . specifications.and requirements as WA P wotk Contractor will manage BWP work in & manner which
provides clients with weatherization outcomes similar to thoseachieved unda WAP guidance whenever

. possible. - The occasions when WAP rules must apply to BWP work are set out in this document
' {Exhibit B). ;

7. Client eligibility forBWP- funded weatherization work should generally be the ssme as for WAP-

funded weatherization work: client income is to be no grester than 60% of the stte median income
(SM1).

- 8. BWP money mey be "levungcd" (used in combination) with any other wealberization fundmg source.
If WAP/DOE money isusedina dwelling weatherization project, and if the Subgrantee wishes to count
thatprojectas e WAP/DOE completion, then the project must have at lesst one energy conservetion
measure thetmeetsthe SIR test, that measure (or those meesures) must be paid for with WAP dollars,

and the finel inspection of the whole job must be done by & current BPI cenified Quallry Control
Inspector {QCI) and dcclarcd "WAP complete, rcady for renmbursemcm

9. BWP money may be used for cither full dwclhng weatherization upgrades or for heating system
improvements slone. Contractoris obhguled under this contract to expend et least 50% of the
contrected BWP smount on heating system repairs and/or replacements.
. 8. TbePY23 BWPpackage of forms (seeitem 12b, below) for reporting BWP expenditures will
include columns to moke clear whenever BWP money was used:
i. for restoration of heating services (repair or replacement of inoperable heating
eqmpmen!},
il. for prevention of heating system service loss (repair or uplacernent to avoid *
. approaching failure), or
iii. forsupplementing or fully supportifig 8 whole house weatherization pmjm with space
1o report when heating system work paid for with BWP funds is part of that whole
house upgrade.

10. The maximum amountof BWP money to be spent on any one dwelling project without 2n spproved

- weiveris $12,000. If the BWP budget for any one project must exceed that amount, & waiver must be
received from NH Energy. NH Energy will review.all waiver requcsu promptly and will provide
approval when possible. However, epplying the expenditure guidelines in the FY23 NH LIHEAP-State
Plan, NH Energy will notapprove tota] BWP expenditures on eny one dwelling weatherization project
thet excecds 15,000. This total is cumulstive, summing the BWP expenditures madeduring all visits to
that dwellmg (mc\udmg smounts from program years in which thc name of the LTHEAP- fundcd
weal.henzauon program may have been different).

11. BWP producuon mcludes

3. Weatherizationupgradeswhich sr¢ commensurate with a work plan developed from e'thorough
dwellingenergy audit and a TREAT mode! prepared by a qualified (BPI-cenified) Building
Analystor Energy Auditor or Quality Cantrol Inspector who has developed the work plan (the

" energy connmuon measures — ECMs — to'be mslallcd) using cither the “benefivcosi ratio”

Exhibn B
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- (B/C) methodology asdefinedby the utilities” Home Energy Assistmoe (HEA) progrem or the
3 “savings to investment ratio” (SIR) methodology as defined by the US DOE for use in WAP.
The SIR methodology must be used to justify the installation of any ECMs whichareto be paid
for wn.h WAP funds.

b. Finsl mspcchons which determine: -

i. whether the project’s work plan was appropriate and complete, ukmg into zccount the
methodology — B/C o SIR - used by the encrgy auditor to select the ECMs to be
installed, the pre-weatherization condition of the building, etc.

ii. whether lhnl sppropriate work plan was fully and effectively implemented in the
dwelling, providing the client with a comprehensive cnergy-saving westherization
outcome, o7, in the casc ol hearing system only improvements, providing the client with’
& safe and efficiznt and fully-operational home beating system.

c. laprojects where BWP money is used along:idc W AP money in the same dwelling (and there
may be other fimding sources as well), that pro;ocl s ECMs whichere to be paid forusing BWP -
and/or WAP funds must be completed using the WAP rules snd standards, including the
installstion of only those measures which individually echievean SIR equal (0 or greater than |,
the use of a centified Quality Control Inspector to perform the final inspection, etc.

d. Inprojects where no WAP money is invelved, the final BWP imspection may be performedby s
person holding & current BP1 centification in ¢ least ane of the followmg arcas: Building
Anslyst, Encrgy Auditor, or Quality Control Inspector.

¢. Becsuse BWPmoneyisnot WAP money.BWP money mzy be used in weatheriztion upgredes
to dwellings which havereceived WAP-funded or BWP-funded upgrades more recently than
the 15-yearcolling time period which govems WAP re-westherization by presenting a weiver
request to NH Enesgy. However:
i. re-weatherization should be donesparingly, remembcnng that there are thousands of
* potential clients who have received no weatherization services at pll; A
ii. care should be taken, a3 olways, 1o avoid even the sppesrance of favoritism;
iii. | o}l BWP-funded second visils to previously weatherized dwellings, whether that
westherizetion work was done with WAP or BWP or HEA funds, must be proceded by-
receipt of an approved waiver from NK Energy.

12. The tacking of BWP jobs will include: !

p. Contractor preparation and maintenance of a client file on every BWP job. Contractor will
utilize o filing protocot which allows recavery of the file when checking future jobs against
previous weatherization work performed et that address, clc., evenif no WAP money was used.
Future-CAP agency WAP Directors need to be ablc to check on weatherimtion work completed
in dwellings, even'when WAP money was not involved.

b. Theuse of 2separnte BWP réimbursement request packagelspreadshcc! package supplicd by
NH Energy. Al jobs with sny BWP money invested must be submitted for reimbursement on
the BWP setof forms. If a particular job also includes the use ofany WAP money, then that job
will have to be submitted for WAP reimbursement as well, using the WAP reimbursement
request forms. Therefore, if a single weatherization job uses funds from two different
weatherization funding sources menaged by NH Energy, that job must be submitted to NH
Energy twice in otder for it to be reimbursed for the correct smount from each source.

13. This agrcement cansists of the following documents: a completed P-37 form, and Exhibits A, B, C, D,
E,F.G H,1,and). Al cxhlbus are incorponated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.
Exhida A
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERCY
EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services sei forth in Exhibit B, the State agrees to
pay the Contractor, Tri-County Community Action Program, up to-the total sum of: -

14 l'6,92'8 . (which hereinafter is referred 1o us the "Contracied Amount™), of which
$5.,846 is the maximum to be spent on BWP related adminisuative costs,
3111082 (the balance) to be spent on westherization activities (Program Activity).

Drawdowns from the tota) contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cashneedis submitied to NH Encrgy. Disbursement of the contrected amount shall be
made in accordance with the procedures esublished by the State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance
basis; limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate
cash requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the purpase of the program. The Contractor must
meke timely payments to (sub)contractors in sccordance with the contract provisions. Contractor shall
submita payment request to NH Energy for each month of the contract period using the forms to be
provided by NH Energy for thet purpose. Payment requests from Contractor shall be received at NH
Energy no later than the 15 day of each month of the first business day following the 1 5% day.

Administrative costs are provided in order to support a specified number of unit completions 8t minimal
standards. Administrative funds may be pro-rated by NH Energy if production unit completions do not
mect expected production goals.

NH Energy will also be athowed, 25 » function of its administrative oversight, to modifycontracted budget
amounls a3 necessary to ensure the ¢fficient and effective operation of the conuract as loogas these
modified expenditures do not exceed the tow} "Conracted Amoum™ 83 specificd above.

All obligations of the State, inciuding the continuance of any payments, are contingent upoo the
oveilability end cqnﬁnucd appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHISIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Piovisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections $151-5160of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100650, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agreesto have the Contractor's representative, 83 identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Centification: : .

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER 'l'.H‘AN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 51515160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Actof 1988 (Pub. L. 100699, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.5.C. 701 etseq.). The Janusry 31, 1989, reulations were
amended and published es Part Il of the May 25, 1990, Federa) Register (pages 21681.21691), and require
certification by grentees (end by inference, sub-granices and sub-contractors), prior to sward, that they will
maintain s drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantec (and by inference,
sub-gréntees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect lo make one cenification tg the Department in each
federa! fiscel year in licu of certificates for each grant during the federa! fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate sei out below is a material representation of fect upon which relience is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the cenification shail be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, o7 govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
= should send it to:
Commissioner, New Hampshire Department of Energy
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10, Concord, NH 0330)

A Thc'grantéc cenifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workpllacc by:

(8)  Publishing o statement notifying employees that the untawlul manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, posscssion oruseof a controlied substance is prohibited in-the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken agaimst employees for violation of such prohibition;

i \

) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1)  The dengers of drug sbuse in the workplace;
(2) - The grentee's policy of maintaining 8 drug-{ree workplace; ;
(3)  Any available drugcounseling, rehsbilitation, end employee assistance programs; snd
(8) . - The pensltics that may be imposed upon employees for drug sbuse violations occurring
in the workplace; : ®

()  Making ita requirement that each employee 10 be engaged in, the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by parograph (o); ’

(d)  Nolifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (2) that, as & condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the teros of the staiement; and ]
(2)  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for 8 violation of a criminal drug
' statute occurmingin the warkplace no later then fivecalendardays after such conviction;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

n Exhdits D thru H
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US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY -
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

{¢) Notifying the ageacy-in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subpsragreph (d)X2) from an employeeor otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer onwhose grantactivity the convicted employeé was working, unless the Federsl agency
has designated 8 central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of cach effected grant;

() Taking.one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under.
' subparagreph (d}(2), with respect to sny cmployce who is 50 convicted—

(1)  Taking sppropriate personnel aclion against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consisten! with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Actof 1973, as
amended; or - ' :

(2)  Requiring such employee to perticipate satisfactonly in & drug abusc assistance or
rehabilitstion program spproved for such purposcs by & Federsl, State, or local health,

law enforcement, or other appropriate agency. .

(8). Makings good faith effortto continue 0 mairdain & drug-free worltplncet.l':rou@ implementation
of paragraphs (2), (b), (¢}, {d). (¢}, and (1).

{B)  The granteé may insent in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant. :

Plice of Performance (street address, city, counry'. State, zip code) (list cach locetion)

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

Cheek [ if there are workplaces on file thet are not identified here. ¢

Tri-County Community Acticn Program ' ' upon Governor and Ex.ecutive Council
” 5 approval through December 31, 2023
Conmactor Name : Period Covered by this Cenfication

. Ieam;e Robillard, Cixief Exctutive Officer -
Name and Title of Authorized Cantractor Representative

& 't Bentative Signature Dat%
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT E

. The Contractor identificd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance (or New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, asidentified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genefsl

" Provisions execute the following Centification:

- CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
i US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-Income Home Egergy Aulmnee Program
BRRP Program " ) o
BWP Program v ' =
Contract Pericd: upon Govemnor end Executive Councl approval Lhroug,h Dccember 31,2023
"The undersigned certifies, to rhe bestof h:s or her knowledge and beliel, that:

(I)  NoFederal appropriated funds have been paid of will be paid by oron behalf of the undemgncd to any
person for influencing or attempting to influcnce an officer or employee of sny agency, 8 Member of
.. -Congress, an officer oremployecof Congress, or snemployec of & Member of Congress in connection .
with the awarding of any Federal contracy, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modificstion of any
. Feders! contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by Spcclﬁc mention sub-grantee or sub-
conftractor). X

(2)+  if any funds other than Fedcral appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 1o any person for
influencing or arempting to influence an officer or employce of sny agency, e Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congreis, o en employee of 2 Member of Congress in connection with this
Feders! contracy; grant, loan, or cooperative sgreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractos), the undcmsnedsh o)l complete and submi1 Standard Form LLL, “Disclosurc Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, anachéd and ndenuﬁed #s Standard Exhibit - 1

(3) Theundersigned shall require that the language of r.hucemﬁcauonbe included in the award document for
sub-swards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts undcr grents, losns, and
_ cooperative agreements) and that oll sub-recipients shall centify and disclose accordingly. .

This cedtification is & materis) rcprt'uma!ion of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
‘made or entered into. Submission ofthis certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Titlg 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required centificetion shall be

subject to 8 civil pe"n_alt)i-‘ LE _lcss than §$10,000 and nol more thean $100,000 for each such faiture.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO
nk _r Reprcscnlauv'l Signature _ Contractor’s Represenmtive Title

Tri-County Commumly Action Program. . Y \ 3|‘;’a
Contractor Name . Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT F '

The Controctor identified in Section 1. of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the.provisions of
Exceutive Office of the President, Exccutive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 re garding Debarment, Suspension, g
and Other Responsibility Marters; and further agrecs to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections ).11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Centification: .
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participast is providing the
certification sct out below. B i

(2) The inability of a personto provide.the centification required below will not necessarily resultin denia? of
participation in this covered transaction. [fnecessaty,the praspective participantshall submit a0 explanation
of why it cannotprovide the certification. The centification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy (NH Energy) determination whether to enler into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to fumish a centification or an explanation shall
disquslify such person from participation in this transaction. ’

(3) The cenification in this clouse is e materis] representation of fact upon which reliance was placed whén NH
Energy determined to enter into this transaction. [f itis later deiermined thet the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroncous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal Government, may terminaie this transaction for cause or defaull. .

(6) The prospective primary participant shall providc immediste written notice to the NH Energy to whom this

_proposal{contract) is submitted if a1 any time theprospective primary participant leams that its certification
was erroncous.when submitted or has decome ermoneous by reason of changed circimstances.

(5) The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible," “lower tier covered transaction,”
“participany,” “persan,” *'primary covered ransaction,” “principal,” "proposal,” and "volunarily excluded,”
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions end Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Pan 76. ]

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed

. covered ransaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly cnier into any lowertier covered ransaction with a
person who is.debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, o votuniarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless suthorized by NH Energy. i .

{1) The prospective primery panicipanl further ogrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause

- titled “Cenification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by NH Energy, without medification, in all lower tier.cqvered ransactions
and in ell solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. ' ]

(8) A participant in s coveredtransaction may fely upona certification of a prospective participant ih 8 lower tier
coverediransectionthat it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded {rom the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is crroneous. A participant may décide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participam may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List {of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing conwined in the foregoing shall be construed to require esteblishment o fa system of records in order
10 render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of &
participant is not required to exceed that which is nomally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings. ) :

(10) Excep! for _tnnsaétibns puthorized under paragraph § of these tnstructions, if 8 participent in & covered
trensactionknowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with 2 person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction,.in addition to other remedies
availsble to the Federel government, NH Energy may terminate this ransaction for cause or defauit.

Exbidiis Db H
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'CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMEN'IE'SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIB!LITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COYERED TRANSACT IONS, cont’d
* Centification Regarding Debarinent, Suspension, and COther

Responsiblity Mad:rs Hfmary Covered Transacnon:

(11} - The prospective primary participant certifies to the bcst of its knowledge and bellef that it and its
principals:

{e) are not presently debarred, su'spcndcd, pmposed-fordebnnnml,declared ineligible, or voluntarily
exciuded from covered transactions by any Federel department or agency;

. ) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (conttact) bieen convicted of orhad &
y civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fravd or a criminal offense in connection
with oblaining, attempting 10 obtein, or performing 8 public (Federel, State-of local) ransaction
or & contract under o public transaction: violstion of Federnl or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embezziement, theft, fargery, babery, fulsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) arc not presently indicted for otherwise ¢riminatly or civilly charged by a guvemmcmal entity

(Feders), State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumersted in paragraph ()
of this certification; and

(@) have not within e three-year period preceding this nppllcanonfproposal had one or more public
transactions (Federsl, Sme or local)} terminated for couse or default.

(12)  Where the prospective primary participent is unable 10 cenify to any of the statements in this certificaton,
" such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

* Certification Regarding Debarmunt, Suspension, Ineligibility and )
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower. Tler Covered Transactions
(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By nymg and submitting this lower tier proposal (con!nct) the prosper.uve lower uer perticipant, as deﬁncd in
45 CFR Pan 76, certifies co the best of its knowlcdge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) arc not presently debarred, suspended, pmposcd for debacment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transsction by any feders] department or agency.

(b)  where the prospective tower tier participant is unable to certify lo any of the above, such
prospective participant shall actach ap explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further ngm:s by submitting this proposel (contract} that it will include this

clause entitled " Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covcred Trnnn:nons, without modification in all lower tier covercd transactions and in all solicitations for

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

Qe Repres Contractor's Representative Title:
Tri-County: Community. Action Projrem A 13!33\
Contractor Name o Date
g
. Exhibits D thru H

“ S\ - . PageSof?

Initisk S&! \_f.'.‘m!u “!3‘3 a
Award #Q0-2301NHLIEA ) K
CFDA #91.568



Pl

it

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY_
"STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE ®
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (.:OM?LIANCE '

The Contractor identified in Section 1. of the Genersl Provisions agn.es by signeture of the Contractor’s

representative as identificd in Scctions 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genernl Provisions, to exccule the following
centification:

By sigoing and submstting this proposa! (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonsble efforts to -
comply with all applicablc provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Actof 1990,

-

Jéanne Robillard, CEQ
Contraclor's Representative Title

Tei-County Community Actioh Program li !3!9&
Contractor Name ’ b Date g

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
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Tri-County County Community Action Program

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227, Pare C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, aisoknown as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires

that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoot facility routinely ownod of leased or contracted for'by
an entity and usedroutinely or regularly for provisionof health, day care, education, dr library services to children

under the age of 18, if the serv

govemnments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, oc loan guarantee.

ices are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local

The law does not apply 10 children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely Ly Medicere

“or Medicaid funds, end portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol reatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may resultin the impositfon of e civil monetary pensity of up to
$1,000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative comptiance arder on the responsible entity.

By signingand submitting this application the applicanygrantee centifies that it will comply with the requirements

of the Act

The applicanVgrantee further agrees that it will requise the language of this cenification be included in any
- subawards which contain provisions fot the children's services and that all subgrantees shaD cenify accordingly.

+

Jeanne Robillsrd, CEQ

Contractdt Representative Signature

Contactor's Representative Title:

w323

Contractor Name

Award #0-2301NILIEA
CFDA #93.568
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DOEF 1600.3 (08-9i)
OMLB Cartrdt Ma, | $10-0400
Al Oches Editions Aze Obaolete

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

@ STANDARD EXHIBIT | "
U.s. DBPARTMENT OF ENERGY p
ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY :
ASSISTED PROGRAMS
OMB Burden Dlscloture Statement \

Publlc reporting burden for this collection of information-is estimated to average 15 minutes pér response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the date
needed, and completing and reviewing the coilection of information. Send comments regarding this bu rdeo-
estimate or any other aspect of this collectionof information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, lo
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight,Records Management Division, HR -
422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Depanment of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,-
S.W., Washington, DC 20585, and to the Office of Managemient and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction
Pro;ecl {1910-0400), Wuhmgton DC 20503,

mmn_cmmm{ﬂcrcmuﬁcr called the "Applicant®) HEREBY AGREES to comply
with Title VI of the Civil Rights Actof 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federul Energy Administrstion
. Actof 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Encrgy Reorganization Actof 1974 (Pub. L. 93-438), Title LX
of the Education Amcendments of 1972, as asmended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93.568, and Pub. L. 94-482),
Section 504 of the Réhabilitation Actof 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Actof 1975 (Pub. L. 94-
135), Title VTI of the Civil Rights Actof 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department.of Energy Organization Act of
1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and
Title 10, Code¢ of Feders) Regulations, Part 1040, 1o sccordence with the above laws and regulntions issued
pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrecs to sssurc that no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race,
color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from pmtpauon in, bz denicd the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjccted to discrimination under any program or activity in whu:h the Applicant receives Federal
amsunce from the Department of Energy.

Appllubﬂlty and Perlod of Obligation - .
In the case of any service, finencial sid, covered employment, equipment, property, or struchwoe pmdod. leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended Io the case of any transfer of
such service, financial oid, equipment, proparty, or swucture, this assurence obligates the ransferee for the perind
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personnlpmpcrty is 30 provided, this as surance obligates the
- Applicant for the period during which itretains ownership or possession ofthe propery. In all other ceses, this
assuranceobligates the Applicent for the peiod duting whlch the Federal assistanceis extended to the Applicant
by the Department of Energy.

" Employment Practices .
Wherce a primacy objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of servicesin programs or activities resulting from Federn) assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicent agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national-
ofigin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employmentpractices may include, but are not
" limitedto, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or teemination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
. taining and penicipation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensavian and use of facilities.

Scbreciptent Assurance

| _ - Bxbbk1
i !g . Pugodof2
Inirials _'lem:
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CFDA 893568



DOEF 1800.3 (06-94)
CtS Cowe M, 19100400
All Other Bditons Ars Obsoletr °

The Applicant shell require any individusl, organization, or other eatity with whomit subcantracts, subgrants, or
subleases for the purposc of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure 10 comply
with laws and regulationscited ebove. To this end, the subrecipieni shall be required to sign a written assurance
form; however, the obligation of both.recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relicved by the
collection ot submission of written assurance forms. -

H

Datn Collection and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile endmaintain information pertaining to progroms-or activitics developed s &
tesult of the Applicents receiptof Feders! assistance from the Deparument of Energy. Such informstion shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services ure or will be provided snd'relnted |
data necessary for determining whether any persons.are or will be denicd such services on the basis of prohibited
discriminstion; (2) the poputetion eligible 1o be served.by race, colot, nationel origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding cavered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficisries of the program where necesiary to permit cffective pesticipstion by beneficiaries unable to speek or
underztand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilitics connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whether the location hes or will have the effect of unnecesserily denying
" access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by rece,
color, nationsl origin, sex, age and disability in sny planning or advisory body which is an integre] part of the
‘program; and (6) any additiona) written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevantto the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance,

The Appticant agreesto submil requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activitics
developed by the Applicant fromthe use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and ather sourcesof informalion pertinent to the Applicant’s compliance with the civil nights laws
shall be msde available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer oremployecof e
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Encrgy.

This assurance is given in considerstion of and for the purpose of obtaining any and !l Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding protrement contracts), propesty, discounts or othér Federa! assistance extended after the
date hereof, to the Applicents by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account efter
such dsts of epplicetion for Federal assistance which are spprovedbefore such date. The Applicant recognizes
. and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and sgreements
made in this assurence, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this,
assurance. This sssurence is binding on the Applicant, the suceessors, gansferees, and sssignces, as well as the
person(s) whose signatures appear below and whao are authorized o sign this assurence on behalf of the
Applicant. L z

Applicant Ce;ﬂflcmon

The Applicant certifics that it has complicd, or that, within 90 daysof the date of the grant; it will comply with
all applicsble requirements of 10 C.F.R. § $040.5 (a copy will be fumishgd to the Applicani upon wrilten

request to DOE). 7 ) :
. Date HIS{JQ

Jeanne Robillerd, CEO Signature

Tri-County Community Action Progrsm
30 Exchange Street .
. Bertin, NH 03570  ~ : "
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT Y’

. CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federsl Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA)requires prime awardees
of indivicdual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awardcdon ot after October 1, 2010,
to report on data related to executive compensation end associsted first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or
more. If the initis] award is below $25,000 but-subsequent grant modifications result in a total award

equal to or over$25,000, the award is subject io the FFATA reporting requircmerits, as of the date of the
award, :

In-accordance with 2 CFR Part | 70(chonlng$ubawa}d and Exeadive Compensation lnfoma:ﬁ&), the
New Hampshire Department of Energy musi report the followinginformation for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

"1} Name of entity
2} Amountof award
3} Funding sgency - .
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Progrem source .
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
1) Location of the enlity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (UE] #) E
10) Tota! compensation end nsmes of the top five executives if: E
8. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment,and those
revenues ere greater than $25M annuslly and .
b. Compensation information is not alrcedy availsble through reporting 1o the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA requireddata by the end of the month, plus 30days, in which
the swerd or award smendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federsl Funding Accountability sand Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 shd Public Law 110~
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
‘agrees 1o have the Contractor's representative, 85 identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions executs the following Certification:

ar

-

The below named Co,n:t.n\ctor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Deparmedof Energy snd to comply with all applicebleprovisions of the Federal Financial
ikt rparency Act, :

Jeanne Robillard, CEQ

Tﬁ-Coun;y E'."Bunty Community Action Program. . “13123
(Contrector Nsme) 1 ‘ - " (Date) : ¥

Exhidit )
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

i STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identifiedin Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, [ cestify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and occurate.

1. The Unique Entity Identifier (UE) number for your entity. H&l‘:\.\!ﬁﬂaﬁ\;‘f"\ v i

2. In your business or organization'spreceding conpleted fisca) yeny, did your business or organizstion
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your snnus! gross revenue in U.S. fedesal contrects, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, snd/or cooperative agreememnts; and (2) 525,000,000°0r more in anhual gross revenues
from U.S. federsl contracts, subcontracis, loans, granus, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

Woro __ YES

PR = 4

1{ the anstver to #2 above Is NO, stop here

Ifthe oaswer to #2 above is YES, please answer the I'olhwé:g:

3. Does the public have acoess to informationabout the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reparts filed under section 13(e) or | 5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(2), 780(d)) or scction 6104 of the [oteenal Revenue Code of 19867

NO YES
H the answer to #3 nhove is YES, stop here
" Iftbe answer to #3 above is NO, please answver the folowing:

4. The asmes and compensation of the five most highly compenssted officers in your business or
organizetion are a3 folows: N

Name:._ Amounl: _ ___
Name:. I;moum: L
Neme: Amount: ____
Neme: ____ " T Amount: ____
Name:‘____._ Amount: ____
A Exhibit )
Inkials m?ﬁfi@?
. Award 8G-2J0INHLIEA .

CFDA #1931 368



NEW HAM‘PSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

r -

v EXHIBITK - . =
CERTIFICIATION REGARDING NI{PAam'! NEPA COMPLIANCE FORWU\A;V?APIZ

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply withthe provisions of
the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)42 U.S.C. §4321 et seq., rules promulgated thereunder
(40 CFR Parts 1500-1508, guidance documents issued by the Office of Management and Budget or the
US Department of Energy (USDOE), New Hampshire's DOE executed Historic Preservation
Progremmatic Agreement, and USDOE Office of Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy (EERE)
NEPA Delermination GFO—WAP 2022A (NEPA Detemmmtlon-WAPn)

The Greintec agrees to assure compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act
(NHPA) and New Hampshire's DOE executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement prior to
authorizing. the use of funds.

The Grantee agrees that it will not fund activities that are not ~Allowable Activities” pursuant to the
NEPA Determinetion-WAP22, which include:

1. Administrative sctivities associated with management of the designated Weatherzation Office and
management of programs and strategics in suppon of weatherization activities.

2 Dévclc)pmcnt and implementation of lminh:g programs and strategies for weatherization effor,
inchuding tnitial home energy audits, final inspeclions, and clicm education.

3. Purchase of vehicles and equipment necdcd for sdministrative acuwnes wealhmzahon energy audits,
instatlation of measures indicated below, and guality control inspections.

4, Wathcrization zetivities provided that activitics adhere to the requirements of the respective
Recipients' DOE exceuted Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are installed ip existing
buildings, are appropriately sized, are covered by Appendix A of 10 CFR 440, and/or approved as past
of the energy audit approval procedures and materiat approvals process, and limited to:
8. Building Shell Measures: -
i. Install insulation where needed
il. Perform air sealing :
iii. Repair and replace windows, storm windows, install window film, awnings and solar
screens
b. Mechanical Measures:
i. Clean, tune, repair, or rcplace hesting andlor coolmg systems
ii. Instail duc( and heating pipe insulation
iii. Repair leaks in heating/cooling ducts
iv. Install programmable thermostats
v. Repair/replace domestic water heaters
vi. Install domestic hot 'water hester tank insulation
. c. Electric and Water Measures:
i. Install efficient light squrces
ii. Install low-flow showerheads
jii. Replacc inefficient refrigerators with energy-efficient models

5. E.netgy-mlnted health and safety measures (per Weatherization Program Notice 227, or the most
current guidance) provided that activities adhere to the requmcms of New Hampshire's DOE
executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, occur in existing buildings, and are limited to:

. Award ¥ G-230INHLIEA - Exhidat K - Page of 3
CFDA¥9)S68 - Oreatee Initabs: Dau_“_ufcaﬁ_



a. Combustion appliancé safety inspections
b. Air quality assessment and limited removal of formaldehyde, volstile organic compounds,
flammable liquids, and other air poliutants
¢. Gas and bulk fuel leak inspections '
d. Tesung and/or containment, removal or disposal of lead, asbestos, mold, moisture, refnserant
mercury, and other materinls so WAP activities may be completed
e. Conduct radon testing and precautionary measures, mcludmg but not limited to, sump pump
covers, covering exposed dint floors with polyethylene sheeting which contains a rating of no
more than 0.} perm, which is sealed and attached ai 8ll seams, walls and foundation penetrations
f. Inspect and install carbon monoxide and smoke alarms

. g. Install ventilation as required by the American Society of Heating and Air-Conditioning

Engineers (ASHRAE) 62.2-2016 standard, includiog blower door testing sddressing infiltration,
ventilation, and exhaust

6. Incidentsl and necessary energy-related repairs and replacements limited to:
a. Repair/replace damaged windows and doors
b. Electrical and plumbing repairs

. 7. Readiness activities focused on steuctursl, health, and safety issues required before weatherization
measures can be completed, provided that sctivities adhere to the requirements of the nespectivc New
Hampshire’s DOE executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are msulled in exisling

" buildings, and are limited to:

a. Repairfreplace damaged windows and doors

b. Electrical and plumbing repairs . ' P N &

c. Roof repairs

d. Interior and exterior wall repairs

¢. Ceiling repairs. ' i

f. Floor. repairs ' ' :

g Foundation or subspace (craw! space) repairs

h. Exterior drainage repairs limited to gutter repair or replacement, lnmm.mg shrubs, and/or
grading in close proximily to the perimeter of the foundation.

" 8. Development, implementation, and installation of onsite renewable energy technology from
reneweble resources, provided that activities adhere to the requirements of Ncw Hampshire's DOE
executed Histdric Preseivation Programmatic Agreement, are installed in or on an existing structure, do
not require ground disturbence, no trees are removed, end limited to:

8. PV systems appropriately sized that do not exceed 60 kW

b. Sotar hot water heating systems appropriately sized that do not exceed 200,000 BTUHR |

c. Battery storage, if applicsble, atteched to & structure (e.g. inside 8 garage) and not visible from

the public right of way )

Activities/projects not listed above, including ground disturbing activities and tree remaval; sctivities
where the following elements exist: extraordinary circumstances, cumulative impacts or connected
actions that may lead 1o significant effects on the human environment, or any inconsistency with the
."integral elements” (as contained in 10 CFR Part 1021, Appendix B) as they relate to a particular
project; and activities rcsmcted elsewhere in Award No. DE-EE00100001.0000 are not "Allowable
Activities."

Activities that do nol qualify as "Allowable Activities” as defined ebove are subject to additional NEPA
review, which requires additiona! documentation and submission of en environmental questiondiaire. If
- the Contractor wants to fund activities that do not qualify as “Allowable Activities,” then Contrector
agrees to notify NHDOE WAP Administrator, and 10 seek NEPA review through the NHDOE WAP
Administrator. Activities requiring NEPA review are not authonzed for chcml funding and the

. Awsrd # G-230INHLIEA ) N ElhRHEK Ps ef )
" CFDA#¥9).568 X Gmntcc,lnixhb:. 23— Date: 3
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.

Conteactor may not undertake or fund those activities-unless and until the USDOE Contracting Officer,
through the NHDOE WAP Administrator, provides written authorization for those activities.

The Contrector-egrees to document conformance with the Allowable Activities tisted above before .
commencement of any project.

The Contractor agrees to complete the OnIincﬂUSDOE training on NEPA gnd Historic Preservation ot
www._energy. govingde/4816816.

4

picf Excrative Off

Grantee's Representative Title .

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. ol ‘bla'a . 2
Grantee Name ' ) Daie C

. Y Exbibit X ~Ppge) of 3
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%A 0903"5& ; Graniee Initialy: J{ Date:
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State of New Hampshire. ~ *  °
= ) . Department of State-

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary c.:l' Stote of the Siste of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify thet TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY .
ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUN'FY CAP) is o New Hampshire Nonprofit Corpotation registered 1o iransact business in
New Hempshire on May 18, 1965. | further centify that oll fees and documents required by the Secrelary of State’s office have

been reccived and is in good suinding as far as this office is concemed:

Business iD: 63020 _ ' =
". Centificate Number: 0005774957 ' - on

2 . INTESTIMONY WHEREOF, |

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 10th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanfon
i Secretery of State . -;

1 hereto set my hend‘nn'd.cause 10 be affixed )
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

) _ __Sendy Alonzo | ) heraby certify thal:
(Name of the elacted Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannol be contract signatory) . . o,

1.1 em @ duly elected Board Chalr of _Tr-County Community Action Program, inc. ___ .
. 3 (Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is @ trua copy of a vote taken 8t a meeting of the Board of Directorsishareholders, duly called and
held on e o)) . 20 at which 8 quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present end voling.
ik oh-4 Frcs . '

-,

VOTED: That _Jeanne Robillard, CEO and or Randal! Pilotte, CFO_,  (maylist more than oné buson)
(Name and Title of Conlract Signalory) , ' 3

ts duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. to enter into contracls or agresments
* with the State . i .
‘ {Name of Corporalion/ LLC) -

of New Hampshire and any of its agendes or departments and further s sulhorized lo execute any and ell
documents, agreemenls and other instruments, and any amendments, ravisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be destrable or necessary to effect the purpose of thls vole. : !

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended of repealed and remaing In full force and effect as of the
date-of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate s attached. This suthority remains valld for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is underslood that'the Stale of
New Hampshire will rely on this cerlificate 83 evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy tha

. position(s) Indicated and that they have full authorily to bind the corporation.’ To the exient the! there ere any
[imits on the authority of any listed individus! to bind the corporation In conlracts with the State of New Hampshlre,
all such limitations are expressly sigted herain. _— E ; ]

" Dated: 404,31_*59_93

S, Eleg
- ) Name: Sandy Alonzo
= CE o - Tile: Board Chair

-
-
-

i

CHASTINA MORIN, Notary Public
. Stam of New Mampshie
My Commission Explres December 18, 2023

Rev. 03/24/20
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3cond’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE g i

TH!IS CERTIRICATE, [ ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS KO RIGHTB UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLOER. THI3

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES

SELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES KOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE I1SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIIED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE MOLDER. .
IMPORTANT. H the certficets hoider b3 an ADDIMONAL NSURED, the policy(tea} must have ADDMONAL INSURED previzions or bs endorsed.
o SUBROGATION [$ WAIVED, subject to the tarms end condltions of tha.policy, certaln paticies may requine en andorsement. A statament on

. this certiNicste does not cander rights to'Uve cerlificatn holder in liow of such endorssmentis). &

PROCUCTA . ! A [ EENIALY Andina Mickin
RAUCroIs Inqurance : "'Lh (003} 889-32108 [ (603) 8454331
1100 Exn Suvet EQ,,_. MAnChLCarsQICIOTIIg CY.LOM ; . o
5 v ;DR CEA(D) AKF OROONG EQVIRADE RAK 8
Manchesier | i NH 03101 miapman a; PhEsdelphly indemnily s Co 18038
cORID - T womens: Grariis Sae Haslh Core and Humen Sences St
- TCounty Commuity Ation Program, e . . € :
30 Ecchenge STes ecpmenc: _
MIURER &
Bertn NH 03570 SARTAP
. COVERAGES.. CERTIFICATE NUMBER: _ &2-23 b - REVISION KUMBER:

1305 13 TO CORTIFY THAT THE POUICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED GELOW HAVE BEEN BSUED TO THE DEURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD
INDICATED, NOTWITHETANDING ANY REQURREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH Trrs
1| CERTIFICATE UAY B2 ISSUED OR MAY PERTAN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED KEREM (3 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITORS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAINS. ]

oy L TYPR OF BeSuRANCE [Peve, FOUCTY HuMDER umrTe
COMMER sl CEXERAL LARLITY cnocommoce , 1,000,000
1] e 59 ccxun : | PREm S B eperereny 18 199000
A Y ' 410 159 oy e parponf™, | 4 5000
& s PHPKILIS2 07012022 | 07012073 | pensoras gavecasy |y 1000000
AOGREGATE LY PR  genrnu aooaegurs g 3:000,000 B
raey )% mﬁ“‘ . [ mooucTy - cocenss |y %000.000
| arwen 5 » | Proftasional Liabihy 1 .000.000
AUTOMORIE UARRITY. ! ¥ | PSS LREN T 14 1,000,000
BODILY WIRY (Pyr paryam) L3
A 07012022 | 0TI | BODLY BUUAY (Per atcident) | ¢
; '
: g
: : pcnocoueonce {4 2900000
A o101/2022 | 070V20D | pomspary 4 3.000.000
3 _ S It
g |8 > s | F2"
3 + 1y 1,000,000
B V12022 | DAOVZ02Y [ EACHACRON 1
.L '“ l 1”.@
. oy0ast poucyiem |y 100000
1 N i * '
- 8

CERCAIFTIN OF OPRAATICN S 1LOCANORS / VEWICLES ACORD U, ASEUMAN R unsns Sebatun, may by sRaches ¥ reerd § 3053 b rovuired)

CERTIFICA OER i : CANCELLATION

! Yas SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRISED POLICIED BE CANCELLED BEFORE
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. @ McDonnell
To the Board of Directors of i ) S’ROberrs -
Tri-County Commuriity Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Bariin, New Hampshlre .
New Hamps!y WOLFERORO « NDRT)] CONGRY
Z : DOYER » GONCORD
1 ) STRATHAM
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT :

Report on the Financial Statements ™ 2
We have auditéd the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate {(New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated “statements of financlal position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the related .
consolidated statements of functional expenses and cash flows for.the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 and the related
notes 1o the consolidated financial statements. }
oy 3 t
_ Management's Responsiblility for the Financial Statements - .
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated .
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementalion, and malntenance of inlernal contro!
relevant 1o the preparatiori and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
-free-from material misstatement, whether due to fraud o error.

Auditors’ Responsibliity

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on lhese gonsolidated financiat statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted in’
{he United States of America and the standards applicable lo financial audits contalned in
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the ComptrolieriGeneral of the Uniled States. Those
standards requife that we plan-and perform the audit to oblain reasonable gssurance about

whether the consalidated financia! statements are free from material misstatement.

An -audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit evidence about the amounis and
disclosures in the consolidated financial stalements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due 10 fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal controi relevant to the entity's preparation.and fair
presentation of the consolidated financia!l stalements in order to design audil procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not.for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the enlity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
‘also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and' the
reasonableness of . significant accounting estimales made by managemeni, as well as
evalualing the overall presentgtion of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide @
basis for our audit opinion. :



Opinion .
In our opinion, the consolidated financia! statements referred to above presant fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financiel position of Tri-County Lommunity Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and s consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in Its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021, in actordance
with aceouriting principles generally accepled in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative information . "
.~ We hava previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program; inc. and Affiliate’s 2020 ~
consolidated financial stalements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinlon on those
consofidated financial statements in our report dated October 28, 2020. ‘in our opinion, the
summarized comparative’ information presented hersin as of and for the year ended June 30, .
2020, is consistent, In all. material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements

‘from which it has been derived. ; =

Cther information A
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fo/ming an opinion on the consofidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expendilures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code’ of Federal Regufations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cos! Principles, and Audil Requirements for Federa! Awards, ls presenied for
purposes of additional analysis and is not 2 required pant of the consofidatsd financial
statements. Such information is the responsibifity of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consalidated financial stalements and certain additicnal procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underying accounting and cther
records used to prepare the consalidated fingncial slatements or to, the cansolideled financial
stalements themselves, and.other additional procedures in accordance.with suditing standards
generally accepted in the United Siates of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relalion ta the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordanoé with Government Audiling Slandards, we have also issued our repor -dated
October 28, 2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over finandal reporting and on our tests of ils compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulationd, contracts, and grant agreements and other mattérs. The purpose of that repor is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and nol 1o provide.an opinion on the effectiveness of -Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compiiance.
That report is an integra!l part of an audit performed in ‘accardance with Govemment Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over

financial reporting and compliance, o
&Pem_, Ve Dommid 8 oAt
LA I ORDEALIAET

November 19, 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire
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2 cousounmeo STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
+JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020,

. 3 02
s 4 = . 4 g0 " 2020
3 CU RRENT ASSETS o I
Cash and cash equfvalents $ 3,237,032 $ 2257001
Restriclad cash, Guardlanshtp Services Program . . t317.839 796,037
Accounts recaivable . . 1,617,248 . 1,322,852
Property held for sale ’ —_ 47,000
Pladges receivable ™o 216423 - 307,017
{inventorias " 52,885 102,430
Prepaki expensos ' 23,394 17.882
Tota! current assets 6495122 4,911,189
PROPERTY - :
Property and equipment 12917835 + 12,344,805
Less accumuiaiod depreciation v ; __ (5,850,185} _ ]5,801',944)_-"
- Proparty, net | | 1067750 6,742,861
OTHER ASSETS
. Restricted cash ; 439,822 384,711
TOTAL ASSETS - $ 14002604  §. 12038771
LIABILITIES AND NET.ASSETS, .
CURRENT LIABILITIES i ; 1
Curren) portion of long lam debt g $ 1294 85 $ 437,843
.Current portion of caplial lease obllgauons ; : T ; 3,654
Accounts payabio 4,303 180,427
Accrued compensalsd absences . 233,907 - 243,718
‘Accryed galarias 383,435 <. 49,059
_ Accruad expenses * 266,585 137,304
““  .Rafuridable advences &l y 324,140 181,463
Other liabllies 1,400,645, 850,982
e i Totsl current liabRities . 2,742,180 _2,084,4114
| LONG TERM DEBT .
Long {arm debdt, net of cumen porﬁon " . 4 577,505 4,792,557
.Tow} liab:ll\:es . ; _ 7,318,689 6,876,888,
NET ASSETS : . ;
Without donor restrictions X i 6,199,624 4,565,253
" Wiih donor restrictions ' 483,385 696,550
Total net assets ‘L 6,863,000 5,161,803
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND'NET ASSETS © § 14002684  § 12,038771

L * S0 Notos to Consolidated Financlal Statements :

x ' 3 ‘ ..
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CONBOUIDATED BTATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR TME YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 ° oL o
‘i : . Without Danor With Doner 2021 2020
« . & ' BRestactiors. ~  Rastdcilons Toix o ol
REVENUES AND OTHER EUPPORT * )
Grants and contracly 3 ot $ 18298354 § 415058  $ 1A.711.440 8 14.809.31)
o9 Progrem funding ; 1,477,031 - 1,177,097 1,084,132
. ULy programs 2.659.29) . 2,659,293 1,823,65)
In-kind contixtions . 384,580 = 384,580 455820
Contributions ) 482,340 e 4620 328,218,
i * Fundralaing - . 1,802 . Ry 32,504
] Rantsl Income f 634,183 - 884,109 635,359
Lrderest income - . [ . (] 2
(Lozs) gain nnﬁapou!olmrty (21.208) - (@7.288) © /I NT
: . Los3 on wills down of proparty held kar asie ’ . - - (285,402)
Othor revenue . - 1,384 “ 3 11304 43
Tolz! revanuss and other suppon | D8V 415058 20040408 10374770
e ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 528221 (528,221) :
; Total rovenues. othor wuppon. and . & .
et ossels releasod from resirictions _ _24,181,68 {113,165) 24048408 © 10374770
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES .
Program Services:
Agency Fund® - 1,017,880 . g 1,017 850 1,047,358
Hesd Stan . 1 2858410 Ce o, 28%419 2,789,005
Guardianthip s -e 160,053 ° . 160.05) 769,597,
Trensporiation . 070,078 . 870,078 991,504
Vohniner . 20.817 : 5837 94,845
' Workiores Development . . 40,175 . = 40,175 MB.114
.+ Cermob County Denta) 859,841 . 689,041 852810
Suppod Center 356,359 : - .158.359 550,204
Homatsss o ) 4,780,909 - 4.780.909 600,148
Enargy and Community Development 8,541,527 .. 8.541,627 7.024.201
Exier . . 1,192.43) . 1192453 1,148,138
Houtlng Sarvices ' 192,010 - 192,010
Total program srvices ' ) 20,3843 : 20354301 . 17224970
Supporting Activites: = . ’ :
Goraral and edministulive - 1.172,088 . 172088 1,002,813
Fundraising 1 X = L
i Tot! supporting octiviles ¥ KLY L . . LI72988 ' 1,085483
B Total functions! axpenses ; , 22,527.289 ik 72527209  _10300413
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS . i 1634371 (113,185) 1,521,208 1,084 357
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR ) P 4688253 598550 © __ B161,803 __ 4077448
¢ e E
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 6199624 § 483385 § 6831000 § 6,181,806

Ses Notes to Consolldated Financls) Blaternants
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CONSOLIDAYED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In net assety
menenhtomwvdlodlanoelnnﬂmmn ' T
* net cash provided by operating activities: .
Deprociation gnd omonization
Los3 (galn) on dispesat of pmperty
(tncreasa) docroase in pysely:
Accounts recelvable
Pladges recaivable
Inveniorias ‘
Prapaid axponacs ¥
increase (decreass) inlabiites: .
Accounts payable
Accrued componsatad cmms
Accrued sataries
Accrued wams
Refundably advances
Other llabiiiles I

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from disposal of property
Purchases of property and oquipmant
NET CASH USED iN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES
Repdyment on long-tarm debi
Rﬂpaymenl on capitsl I5ase owgauom
KET CASH USED N FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE [N CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CAGH AND R.ESTRIC*ED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid dmlng the yen.r tor:
Intnrgsl . 't

H ¥ r

Soe Notoss to Con.uulldaud Financlel Statomants’

-2 n2
3 1521208 § 1084387
| 450,040 438,197
27.288 (2.225)
. (284.297) (46,769)
£0.54 {75.856)
49,445 {16.544)
24,268 (43.845)
(1716.124) (41,144}
(9.872) 39,700
14,376 (181,683)
129,201 41,780
142,877 (15.684)
549,683 252,787
2838475 1,454,851
25000 . 4488
feo21) @)
(rss217) . (269,216)
(523,740) (143,884)
" 13554) [s671)
(527,204) 1 so.ss;)
1,555,884 1,035,080
3438720 2,403,649
$ 4994693 § 3438720
135648 3 13187



NOTE 1.

JWUNTY.COMMUNITY 2 [ION PROGE AL
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Orijanization and Princleles of Copsolidation. ' T
The " consolidated financial slatements include the, accounts of Tri-County -
Community Action Program, inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide

" variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or

contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Comerstone HousIng
North, Inc. (Comerstone) is 2 New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition, .

‘construction and o‘peration of commpnity-based housing for the elderly.

N ature of activities _ . W
The Organization’s programs consist of the following:

Agency - .
Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program managament
.gupport and ‘oversight to the Qrganization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT supporl, '
m_anagemant support, financial support and céntra! policy development.’

Tri-County CAP * Administration. {5 the lialson. between Tri-County
Comrnunity Action Program, Inc.’s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors. ' '

Other responsibilities include the managefnenl and allocation’ of funding .
received through 'a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

" Head Start e o ,

. Head Starl provides comprehensive services 10 tow-Income ¢hildren and-
their families.. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive leaming environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition 10 eary leaming, health and
family well-being. - All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral heaith and- mental health suppon. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stabllity, continued education, and financial stability.

8



_ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2021 AND 2020

Programs support and strengthen'parenl-chi'ld relationships -as their child's

. primary educator. Head Start staff work as pariners with parents to identify

and provide individualized activities that support their child’s growth and
development. . =

Tri-Céunty Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250

children in Camoll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship |

_-The Organization's Guardianship progrém provides advocacy and guardian

services for the wvulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
{developinentally disabled, chronically mentally iti, traumatic brain injury, -

_and the-elderly suffering from Alzheimer’s, dementia, and multiple medical

issyes) who need a guardian and who have no family membsr or_friend’
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 Individuals.  Additional- services include, ° conservatorship, .

. representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, bengfit management

sefvicas and private probale accounting services.

, ‘!“rénsgortaﬁon

The -Organization’s -tréinsit  program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, doar-to-door service by request, long distance

‘medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular sérvice area, and

special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fieet of 17

_ wheelchalr accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly

and disabled, as wel! as to the general public.

Volunteer . .
The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains

a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which. 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Qur volunteers donate
over 28,000 hours yearty.

. Workforce Develop fnent

The Organization is assisting transitional and disptaced workers 8s th:ey
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs. :



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S'i'ATEMENTS "
FOR.THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 S &
- o - 3 . \." . i, -l .

The Organization Is helping to Implement New Hamgshire's Unified State
Plan for Worldorce Development, in line with tha federsl Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce. training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide lemporary assistance for needy- families (TANF) ~
tecipients with 20-30 hours per waek of iraining in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sltes. - '
Carroll County Dental , .
Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offérs state of the ait quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
-amay of services including preventative, restorative, and ora! surgery. The
Center d@ccepts most dentai Insurances, slate insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic.-9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, an'd referrals will be made available.

Support Center .

The Organization'’s Support Center at.Burch House provides direct service
and shelter ta victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking i Northern Grafton County. " Support- Center services are
accessible 24 hours & day, 365 days a year. They include: -crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy .advocacy
and accompaniment, emérgency shelter; support groups; community
education. and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources. : ’

Homeless ‘ :
Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock. )
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Energy Assistagce end Outreach K g %
Energy Assistance Services provide fue! and electric assistance through

direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact .
sites allow local participants sccess 1o energy assistance programs and.

other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as wefl as other
programs available through other organizations in the community. '

Low-Income Weatherization . ' 2

The NH “weatherizalion program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living

*  while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing

" energy cost saving, health and safety and-carbon lowering measures: The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates lotal NH jobs.

. Elder. \

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals {Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
. homebound elderdy, and senlor nutrition educétion and related

.programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling,. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and- caregiver
supports. ' '

Housing Services o i
Comersione Housing North, Inc. (Cornersione) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United Stales Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). and a significant portion of their
renta! income Is recalvad from HUD. : g

Comerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berdin, New
. Hampshire far the eldedy. This operates under Section 202 of the National
. - Houslng Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rentsl charges

* and operating methods:

1"



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Comerstone has @ Section 202 Capital Advance. Under . guldelings’
established by the U.S. Office of Management . and Budget Uniform
Guidence, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) pert 200,
Uniform Administrative Resquirements, Cost Principles - and . -Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered t¢ be a major program. A separate audit of Comerstone's
¢ompliance with its major federal program in accordance with- auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained In Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the
audit requirements of Tille 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part- 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified.
opinion was issued. ' i .

Method of accounting’ _ ;
The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accountingin accordance with
_ accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
© promuylgated by the Financial Accounting Standards ‘Board (FASB) Accounting’
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other. than contributions, -
. and expenses are reported when incurred withoul regard to the date of receipt or -
payment of cash. '

Bagis of presentation '

< The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared fn accordance
with U.S. génerally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to reporl information regarding its financial position and activities’
according to the following nel asset classifications:

a

Net gssets without donoy restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donorimposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
"performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directars. - : i

Nét assets with donor restrictians include net assets subject to stipulations
Imposed by donors and -grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those feslrictions will be’ mét by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the fynds be maintained in perpetuity. .

The Organization ha's“ net assets with donor restrictions of $483,385 and' $596,550
at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. See Note 13. '
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Contributions . ‘ . g
Contributions received are recorded as net asséts without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor rastrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period -
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contribytions are

“reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the .
restriction. When 'a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated. time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplishad), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restiictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Recelvable. .
Accounts receivable are stated al the amount management expects to collect from
balances oulstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific. grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
_receivable balance represents amounts due from-patients at Camoli County Dental
program. Past dug receivables are wrilten off at management’s discretion using the .
direct write off method:; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles -
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selacts accounts
to be wrilten off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar. characteristics, such as
" length of time outstanding. © The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts raceivable. i : L

Property and Depreclation

Acquisitions of bulldings, equipmenl, and improvements in excéss of $5.000 and all

expenditures for repairs, maintehance, and betlerments that materially prolong the

useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and Improvements are

stated al cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
. straight-line method over the estimaled useful ives of the relaled assets.

Depreclation expense related to assets.used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assels used by
more than oné program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation. T

Depraciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
poo! and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and répairs that do not materially prolong the usefu! lives of assels are
charged lo expense as incurred. '
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

i
Estimated usefuf lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements . - 20 to 40 years

Vehicles - ' . 5to8.5years

_ Fumiture and equipment i ,. 510 15 years

Cliept Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy ’ .

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to. 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Depariment of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from {rie Department of Housing and Urban
.Dévelopment for the difference between the “allowed ‘rents and the amounts
" received from the clients. . . '

Refundable Advances - s _ L

Grants received in advance. are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed-or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor canditions being met
aggregated $324,140 and $181,463 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status .

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Intemnal Revenue Code. It has been classified 8s an organization that is not -
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns in the
Uniled States. The Organization's Federal Form 890 (Retun of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it-is filed. . N :

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in Income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
rneasure'inent of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax.retum. The
Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a-
liability for income taxes associated with ‘'uncertain tax positions has not been

recognized.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income laxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning.of Section 509(a). .

14



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

“The Organization maintains a ta';;-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of

Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to

. contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed Each employee.

may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2021 and. 2020, there were no discretignary
contributions recorded.  Further information can be. obtamed from the
Organization's 403(b) audited fi nancual statements ’ T

Donated services and qoods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-ﬁnancual assets or

* thal require specialized skills and would typically need. to be purchased if not

provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. if

donors stiputate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulalions,

-conlributions of noncash assels are recorded. as net assets without donor

restrictions.

Donated grogar‘t! and egulgm nt

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as suppont al their esttmaled fair
value al the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assats without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated wilh explicil restrictions regarding their use and -
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and aqulpment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations rpgardmg
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports

“expirations of donar restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in

service as Instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to nel assets without donor restrictions at that time. ¢
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2021 AND 2020.

romises to Glve. :

Conditional promises to give are not recogmzed in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Uncanditional promises to give that are expected
lo be collected within one year are recorded al the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give thal are expected to be collected in-more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the. present value af their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts arer computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor, stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricled to'use after the due date. Promises that remain uncoliected mora than
one year after their due dates are written off ‘unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
-restrictions are réclassified 1o net assets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promisas to give that are expected to-be-collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

As of June-30, 2021 and 2020, there were promises o give that were absant of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor Testrictions in. the "amount of $216,423 and $307,017,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated .
Statement of Activities. o

"Use of estimates '
The presentatuon of financial statements in oonformlty with accounting principtas
generally accepted In the United States of Amarica requires management to make
eslimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent .assels and liabliitles at the date of the financial
- $tatements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the repomng
period. Accordlngly. actual results could differ from those estlmates

Falr Valg_Lof Einanclal IrLsg ments ) : .
Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financlal !nstruments requires the Organization o disclose fair values of its
financial Instruments. . The :camying amount of the Organization's. financial-
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, . approximate fair value because of the short-ferm malunty of those
mstruments

Functlgna] a||gca;ion of exgegsgg

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a funttional basis in the statement of activitiés. Accordingly, cartain
costs have been aflocated among the program serwces and suppomng activities
benefited.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

.grog_ ram _salarles and .related _expenses are allocated ‘to the various
programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as'reported on-a timeshegat.

- Workers Compensation expenses are charged 1o each program based upon
the classification of each employee ‘and allocated to the various ‘program
based upon the time employees spend on each fuiiction as noted above. -

* Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allgcated to each program as 2
percentage of total salaries. y
Fringe Benefits are charged to a Frings Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension - expenses, health and dental
. Insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is alldcated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries. :

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon sbédﬂc'
assets used by the program and s reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other_occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by

mulliple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
- depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are

reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile. insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocaled to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets. ’

The_remaining shared expanses are charged to an Indirect Cosl Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon & percentage of program expanses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administralive travel, professional fees, and oiher expenses which
cannot be specifically-identified and charged to a program. d

e
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{E YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020. -

ks o .
The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid teave, fringe
banefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal; effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, received
provisional approvatl and is effective, untii amended, at a rate of 12%. Per tha
agreement with the U.S. Department’ of Health and Human Services, the
Organizatlon's final rate far the year ended June 30, 2020 was 10.80%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2021 was approximately 11.37%,- which is
aflowable because i is lessthan the provisional rate. : ,

dvertising pollcy i

The Organizalion uses advertising to inform the community about the progréms it -
‘offers and the availability of services..Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $28,130 and
$25,483, respectively.. - i

Debt Issuance Costs - . '

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
“Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Cosls." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognltion end
_measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense In the
- consolidated statements of funétional expenses for both 2021 and 2020.

Revenue Recognition Policy -+ : :

The Organization™ derives revenue primarly from grants, contracts, and
" contributions. Grants are’ recognized as revenue upon receipl. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Conlributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes & pledge to give that.is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
_restrictions or without donor restrictions.

M&@Mnd‘-ﬁonouncgmem_ : i e
In May 2014, FASB Issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts

with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently Issued clarifying ASUs replaced the
_most exisling révenue recognition guidance in" U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires
expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing,’ and uncertainty of
revenue from cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization
adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2020, the first day of the Organization’s
fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption did not result in -
a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue sireams; as such, no
cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue recognition policy above.
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NOTE '2

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Other Matters

The impact of the nove! coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread conlinue to affect the Organization's business. The. significance of ‘the
impact of these disruplions, including the extent of their adverse impact onthe
Organization's financial operational results. will be dictated by the tength of time
thal such disruplions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regutations
that might be lmposed in rasponse (o the pandemic. 5

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, .and through the date of this
report, the Organization has not expenenced a significant decline In revenues, nor a
significant change in its operations.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organlzatlon s fi nanctal assels as of June 30, 2021
and 2020: B

2021 '2020
Financial assets at year-end: %
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated . $- 3,237,032 $ 2257081

Accounts receivable . 1617.249 1,322,852 .
Pledges receivable 16,42 307,017
Tolal financial assets : 5070704 3,886.950

- Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Nat assels with donor restrictions
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year : {412,665} {410.015)
Amounts not available within one year  * 70,720 __ 186,535

Financial assets available to meet-general

expenditures over.the next twelve months $ 4999984 - £ 1700415

"483,385 ~ 596,550

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of

operating expenses which approximates $3,569,000 and $2,860, 000 at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respecﬁvely :
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NOTE 3.

#

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30; 2021 AND 2020 -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash.on hand, funds on deposit with financal
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. Al
year end and throughout the year, the -Organization’s cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are- insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250.900. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year. =

.The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reporied

within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30: :

2021 2020
Cash, operations’ $ 3207032  $2.257.081
Restricted cash, current 1,317,839 796,937
Restricted cash, long'term 439.822 - 384711
_ Total cash and restricted cash $ 4994693 $3438729

Cash Restrictions ’ i .

The Organization. is required to maintain a deposil account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. [t Is required to maintain a
balance of $19,368 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to-
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of

Agriculture. . ] : P

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be: replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The

- balance as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $20,059 and $20,040, respectively.

The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. ‘ . . ’

The Organization is required to maintain & deposit account with another Qan_k as
pant of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
accotint is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2021 and 2020 was $174,755 and $174,626, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance wilh this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash 'on the Consotidated Statements-of Financial Posilion.

20
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LFOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

The Organization mainlairis a deposit account on behalf of clients whc; pérticipale in

the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricled for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financlal
statements 8s other current liabilities: The total current liability related to this

restriction at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $1,317,839 and $796,937, respectivety.

- These amounts are included in other liabilities. on the Statements of Financial

Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2021 and 2020
was $1,317.839 and $796,937, respectlively, and Is included in the restricted cash
batance on the Slatements of Financial Position. _

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricled for
‘certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the

Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total ‘amount restricted at -

. June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $245,008 and $190,045, respectiv_ety. Ses Note 15.

NOTE 4.-

N E_NTO ' L . '
In 2021 and 2020, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are vaived at the mos! recent cost. A physical

o inventory Is taken annually. Cost Is determined using the- first-in, first-out (FIFO)

N'QTE 5.

‘method. Inventdry at June 30, 2021 and 2020 consists of weatherization materials, . .
totaling $52,985 and $102,430, respectively.

PROPERTY / , s :
Property consists of the following at June 30, 2021: ' :
_— ~ Capltalized " Accumulated - Net
- Cost Depreciation 'g_o_gg Value
Building $ 9,931,953 $4,233,084 $ 5,698,869
Equipment . 2,394,488 1,617 101 777,388
- Construction . :
in progress 172,653 - 172,653
Land 418,840 : . - 418,840
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Property consists of tha following at June 30, 2020:

-

‘Capitalized Accumulated ‘Net
Cost . Depreciation Book Value
Building - $ 9.810,288 .  $3,753.302 $6,056,986
Equipment 2,105,850 1,848,642 257,308
Consltruclion .
in progress 4,727 - A2

Land 423,840 . ___- - _..423840

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals. - :

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled
$449,153 and $435,310, respectivaly. - g

The Organization had property held for sale--at June 30, 2020 amounting to
$47,000, which was classified as a curent asset In the accompanying consolidated
statements of financlal position at June 30, 2020. The total loss on the write down
to fair value of this property was $255,432 in 2020.

t

NOTE 6. ACCRUED EARNED TIME: ) _ -
For the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, employees of the Organization were .
eligible to accrie vacation for & maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2021 and
2020, the Organization had accrued a liability for future ‘annual leave time thal its
employees had eamed and vested in the amount of $233,807 and $243,779,
raspeactively. 5 '
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NOTE 7.

~ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANC[AL STATEMENTS

ED JUNE 30 30, 2021 AND 2020

LONG TERM DEBT

. the following:

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027.

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly

- instaliments of $2,938, including interest at 4% per

annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2031. :

Note payable with ‘a bank requmng 60 monthly
instaliments of $459, .including Interest at 5% per
gnnum. This note was an unsecured line of credit
that was converted to a term loan during the year

- gnded June 30, 2016 and was paid off during the'
year ended June 30, 2021.

-

Note payable to a-financing-company requiring 12
monthly Installments of $312; including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was. paid off dunng the year
ended June 30, 2021,

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72

monthly instaliments of $313, including interest at -

5.54% per ennum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
anded June 30, 2021.

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60

monthly instaliments of $143, including intsrest at.

5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Thi$ note was paid off dunng the year ended
June 30, 2021.

23

2021

$ 96,062

285,268

»

~ The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 ‘cansisted of

2020

p—a—+——4

$ 110,824

',30_7-.719

4,478

4,228

3,948
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. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

* FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020 -

-

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72

monthly instailments of $248, including interest at -

6.10% per annum. Secured by the. Organizalion's -

vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30, 2021,

Note payable with & bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum.  Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. This note was paid off during
the year ended June .30, 2021.

Bond payable with @ bank ‘requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
. plus the bank's Internal cost of funds muitiplied by
67% with an indicative rale of 3.28%. Secured by
first comtperciai real estate morigage on various
praperties and assignments of rents. at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc: capital advance
" due to the U.S. Deparimant of Housing and Urban
Development. This capitat advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
.after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final paymarit due in August 2047.

Total toné term deb! befors unamortized debt
. Issuance costs ‘
Unamortized debt issuance cosls

Total long term debt .
Less currani portion due within one year

24

2029 2020
= 7,294
. . 387227

2,467,774 2,547,308
1,617,600, . 1.617,600

_ 250000 ...250.000

4716704, 5241331
(10.044) . {10831} ™

4706660 5,230,400



NOTE 8.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

" The scheduled maturities of long:term debt as of June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Years ending-
2022 _ $ 129,155
’ 2023 i 134,452
2024 . " 139,961
2025 ‘ 145,697
2026 . - 151677
. Thereafter 015,762

§ 4719704

. As described at Note 3, the Organizalion is required to ma’infain a reserve account

with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

_CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS | .
During the year ended June 30, 2016,-the Organization leased a phone system and

copier under the terms of capital leases; which expired in November 2020 and
March 2021, respactively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company
leased an additional cbpier underthe terms of a capital lease, which expired in May
2021. The assets and liabililies under the capital leases were recorded at the lower
of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets.
The assets are depreciated over thelr eslimated lives.

The obligations included in-capital leases at June 30, 2021 and 2020, consisted of
the following: S '

. 2021 2020
Lease payable to a financing company - with
monthly instailiments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease was
secured by the phone system and matured in

" November 2020, _ $ - .8 1213

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly Installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease was
secured by a copier and matured in March 2021.
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Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
intarest at 8.918% per annum. The lease was

4 s_ecureq by & copier and matured in May 2021. B 1,397 :
) S . 3,554
. Less cumrent portion ; - __{3,554)
. S $ R S
DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE 0=

NOTE 8.

NOTE 10.

Tha Organization has available a $750,000 Jine of credit with its primary financlat

i

institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases .

and rents ‘on various properies ‘as disclosed in thé line of credit agreement:

_Borrowings under the line bear interast at 5.00% per annum, There was no balance .
outstanding at ‘June 30, 2021 and 2020. The line .is subject to renewal each

January.

OPERATING LEASES . . : . L

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal, Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are léased on a month to month basis. For

the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the' annual rent expense for leased

facilities and office equipment totaled $138,598 and $181,004, respactively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operatir;g {eases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30,2021, are as follows:

Years ending !
June 30 ’ Amount

2022 . $ 127467
2023 ) 65,722
2024 1 43,884
2025 43,884
2026 42,869 &
Thereafler 3.51 2.
§__322.238 .
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NO_TE 1.

P et ¢

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR.THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS y

The Organization records the value of in-kind conlributions according to the -
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, lransportation and elder .
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.

- These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for simllar

paid positions. .

The Organization is also the beneficlary of a donation of '!n kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.

. The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the differénce betwsen the rental -

NOTE 12.

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many olher Individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the aclivities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not refiect any -value for these
donaled servicos since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination. i

CONCENTRAT|ON OF RISK

* Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majorily of its support from

federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
approximately $18,238,690 (76%) and $14,380,020 (74%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenué was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in thé level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization’s programs and activities.

Cdrnerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
'U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June .
30," 2021 and 2020, approximately 67% and 68%, respeclively, of the
Organization’s total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development.’ In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future
existence of Comerstone Housing North, inc. is dependent upon the “funding
policies c}f the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. '

The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,

for which operations are cancentrated in the elderly person’s real estate market, In -
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operatien of

the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of

federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.

Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an

act of Congress or an"administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes-
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cosl,

including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
" FORTHE YE

%

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WI TH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assals with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30,-2021 and 2020: :

Lo : ' 2021 . 2020 -

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 216,423 $ 307,017

FAP 174,056 102,998

Restricted Buildings, 39,913 85,713

Loans - HSGP s 24,403 22,029

FAP/EAP _ _ 716,330 . 24350

_ RSVP Program Funds _ . 5,887 5,887

‘Head Start  ~ s 5,856 -

RSVP - Matter to Balance : 500 ‘500

] 10 Bricks Shelter Funds . : 17 .

d DOE 7 ' y. 46,287
g Donations to Maple Fund - -1.5711 .

Loans — HHARLF ; " - 104

Coronavirus Response 2 Ty o= A

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 438385 $.596.550

NOTE 14, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance .

The Organization receives funds' under séveral federal and state grants. Under the

terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations

including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be

noncompliant. with the provisions-of the grant agreements, the Organization could
: . be liable to the grantor or face discentinuation of funding.” . =

Envirenmental Coptingencies : :
‘On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a' 1.2-acre site located in Berin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company. .k

.
S
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" NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained

© contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a lelter dated May 2,

‘. East Wing Building had been compleled lo the Depariment's satisfaction. .

_ released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional

NOTE 15.

- restricted depasits of $181,723 and $155,278 were held in & segregated account at -

2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Depariment) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminanls related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents; and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminarits are

action including containment and remediation. .

Loss Contipgencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018 and subsequently, Iegai_ actions were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainly of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30, 2021, as well-as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability,

no amount has been accnied by the Organization at this time..

REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND ) RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS -
Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the

Organization.is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-

June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
availabte for operating purposes. - ' : :

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s u'se of the residual receipts account Is contingent.

upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $59,517 and $31,048 were
held In a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. . )

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual raceipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's projecl rental assistance contract. The policies
direct tha! the amounts in excess of certain limils in the residual receipts account be

.(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted

diréctly,lo HWD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monles
qccumulaled in the residual recaipts account to $250 per unit.

29
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. NOTE16.

‘NOTE 17.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

In accordance with the policy noted above, the Organization was required to remit
funds to HUD totaling $31,412 during the year ended June 30, 2020. in addition to
the funds’ remittéd, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual raceipts account for equipment during the year ended June 30, 2020.

L}

RECLASSIFICATION'

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
raclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the 'statement of
financial position date, but before. financlal statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent evenis are events or transactions that provide additional
evidencé about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inharent in the process of preparing financial slatements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after thal date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through November

"19, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be Issued.
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_ ’ ' CERTIFIEN PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
IBL-GOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION EROGRAMUNG. ™" [owa » comuom
_ ‘ DOVER » CONCORD
STRAYAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTRQL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASEDON  °
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED '

{N ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS <

:

Yo the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
~ Berlin, New Hampshire

Wae have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audils contained In Govemment Auditing Standards
isswued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which-comprise the statements of financia!
position as of June 30,-2021 and 2020, and the related statements of aclivities, funcliona! expenses
* . and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report théreon dated November 19, 2021. :

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting ' .

in planning and performing our audit of the financial stalements, we consldered Tri-County Communily
_ Action Program Inc.'s intemal control over finandal reporting (intemal control) to determine the audil
procedurés lhat are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community' Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
eflectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. .
A deficiency in internal control exists when the.design or opecalion of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent; of
* detect and comrect, misstatements on @ timely basis. A maferial weakness IS 8 deficiency, or-a
combination of deficiencles, in internal control, such that there is a regsonable possibility that a matenial
misstatement of the entily's financial statements wil not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
imely basis. A significant deficlency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In interna! control
thal is less severe than a material weakness, yel important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. O

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
seclion and was not designed to identify all deficlencies in internal control that might be material
wesknesses or significant gaﬁclendes. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal conirol that we consider to be malerial weaknesses: Mowever, material
weaknesses may exisl that have not been Identified. ' E
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Compliance and Other Mattars

. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whethier Tri-County Commumty Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracls, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the detérmination of financial slatement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective- of our audit, and
_ accordingly, we do nol express such an opinion: The results of our tests disclosed no instencés of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govemmen: Auditing S!andards

Purpose of this Report
The purpose. of this report is solely to describe lhe scope of our testlng of mtemai control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's intemal control or-on compliance. This repont is an integral part of an audil performed in
-eccordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the organization's Internal contral and
compliance. Accordingly, this communicalion is not suitable for any other purpose.

X«»«, Mol fecbrds
PWWM Canecaldr

November 18, 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire

35



“POLFEBORO » NORTH CONTAY
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE .
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE.

Yo the Board of Directors of .

TA-County Community Action Program; tnc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compllance for Each Major Federal Program _

We have audited Tr-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with lhe types of compliance
requirements. described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and materal
effect on each of Tri-County Communily Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2021. Tri-County Communily Action Program’Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings' and
questioned costs. ' ' o

Management's Responsibility ' , R
Management Is responsible for compliance with federa! statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal programs. 3

Auditors' Responsibility .
Our respensibility is to express an opinion on compilance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred 16 above. We conducted our audit of compliance In ‘accordance. with audiling slandards
generally accepted in the United Stales of America: the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Govemnment Auditing Standards, issued by.the Comptroller General of the Unied States;
and the audit requirements of Tille 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administralive Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guldance). Those standards and Uniform. Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
_obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with tha types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have & direc! and malerial effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program {nc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered

". necessary in the circumstances. g £ s &

» We believe that our audil provides a reascnable basis for our opinion on compllance for eéchmajoy
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri:County Communily |
Action Program Inc.'s compliance. i i :

]
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Opinlon on Each Major Federal Program : - :
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and matenal effect on each
of its major federat programs for (he year ended June 30, 2021.
Report on internal Control over Compliance oo -
Management of Tri-County Communlity Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over ompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we: considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.’s internal control over compliance’ wilh the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federa! program tc determine.-ths auditing
procedures thal are appropriate In the circumstances -for the purpose ¢f expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federat program and lo test and report on internal control over complianze in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinlon on the
effectiveness of inlerna) control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.’s intemal control over compliance.

" A deficiency in internal conlrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a contro! over
compliance does not allew managemént or employees, in the normat course of performing their
assigned fuiclions, to prevent, or detect and corect, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance |s a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibllily that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and cofrected, on a timely basis. A significant
" daficiency in_internal control over complianice Is @ deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal controt over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less

severe than.a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yét important -enough to menl .

attention by those charged with govemance. .

Our consideration of interal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over

compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did nol identify any’

defitiencies in internal control over compliance that wé consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesges may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of-this report on internal control over compliance is solely 1o describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the resuils of that lesting based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

M%DM AW -

November 18, 2021 ]
North Conway, New Hampshire C
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" SCHEOULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR YHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

. The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on the ﬁnandél statements of Tri-County
Communilty Action Progran, Inc. : s

. No sign_iﬁcant' deficiencles relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Inlemal Conlrol over Finencial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Malters Based on en Audit of Financiel Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

. No instances of nonoompli'ancé material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Governmant
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and

on Intemal Controf ovér Compliénce Requirad by the-Unilorm Guidance. )

. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-Counly
Communily Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

No audit findings that are raquired lo be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.515(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

. The programs tested as major Ip:ro'gra_rns included: '
© U.S!Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP — ALN 93568
U.S. Dept. of the Treasury, Ct;rgnavirus Relief Fund — ALN 21.019
- US. 6ept. of the Treasury, ERAP - APN 21.023 g
U.5. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development, CoC ~ ALN 14.267
New Hampshire Public Utilities Company. Electrical Assiélancé f-’rogtam (non-Federal)

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

8." Tri-County Community Action Program, Iric_. was determined to be a low-risk audip_ee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS.AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

Nons

et
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Tri-County Community Action Program, los.

1547

WAP.BIL.22 K&y Personnel
Nome Tob Title Salary | % of Salary Paid, | Amount paid by
‘ : by contract contract
Jeannc Robitlard ] CEO $132,000 [N/A NIA -
Randall Pilotte” [ CFO_ $90.000 | N/A | N/A
[ Brenda Gagne | Interim CPO $65,000 | N/A NIA
Jerry Milliken Depariment Head | $65.600 | 25% $16,400
Nathan Mills Program Director | $50,000 | 50% 525,000
¥
I
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Jeanmne L. Robillaxrd .

—

CORE. STRENGTIE
Program development, manegement and sdministation  * Cominunity.collaborstions
' Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet funder tandards
. Grant writing and mansgement * Budger pecformance and financul repocting
lanovative solutions & problem solving ¢ Capacity budding
5 Professinnal peesennations ¢ Public speaking
S _ Dedication ¢ Imaginstion ¢ Determingtion .*  Fortrude

Tri-County Communiiy Action Programs, Inc. i
Chicl Bxeculive Olficer L

Berlin, NH 2078 - current FT employrmont
Tri-Connty Commaunity Action Programs, Ine.

* Chiet Operating Olficer

Berlin, NH 2016 .2018 ‘
Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs dhat provide over
60 consumer services scross three counties of Notthern New Hampshice. Essential duties include;
supetvision of Division Directors, oversee and Monitot Program tesources, revenues, expendituzes
and budge1 pesforonnce; tactical oversight of programs to mee oz exceed sgency defined strategic
goals; devclop snd implement'strategies to improve individuol programs and ovemll agency program
and fiscal performance; oversée and lead special projects such as.the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and wock with Senjor Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide nactical guidance to Division Dircctors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs. :

Tri.Connty Commanity Action Programs, Inc.

Division Dircetors TCCAP Prevention Services

Berlin, NB  2015: 2040 . 5

Responsible for four agency programs undec the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee -
division resources, revenues, snd expendituecs and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet ot exceed agency defaed strategic goals; supeevise program directors; waite grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for funders
and agency; devclop fundraising and marketing stategics for programs; represent-program through
participation in state and local initiagves relative to progam/division goals and service delivery;
collaborate with stakeholders and elested officials, including presenting legishitive tesimony.

Tri-Connly Community Action Programa, Ine.

Progrom/Division Direetor: Sapport Center i Bareh House

Litsleton, New Hompshire 2007- 2013 4 ;

Ovérsee daily operation snd supervision of domestic and sexual violence cusis center and residential

- shelter; write grants to sUppOLL PIORRAMS, MONItO tesults, and prepate giant reports and finanicial

_ statements for funders end pacent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and,expehdirures, and
monitor budget petformance and peogress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy

_ programs to easure compliance with grant delivecsbles and applicsble state aad fedeal law, develop
fundraising and marketing stratcgics; participatc in state and local collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and fedena] vicdm scrvice lnidstves, including presentaton of
legislative testimony, create and present trainings fot medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best peactices for victim sevices. ' ..



DR . & JL Robillerd * 2
Bookkeeper: Women's Raral Entreprencbriul Network (WREN) . A
Bethlehen, NII  eurrent PT employment )

Responsible for graot fiscal tracking, reporting, funds teledse aad account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliagons for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliadon for three reaail
locations, prepacng monthly cash flow, focecasts, and standacd fiscal reports for Board of Directots.

Tri-County Commanity Action Programs, Ine.

Direct Services/Volanteer (oordiaatlor: Sapport Ceniee ot Darch louse :
Litueton, New Hampshire 1987 e 2007 L

Provide advocacy and dicect service to vigtims of domestc and sexual violeace; supeevise court

sdvocacy progeams; recruit, train and supervise saafl, volunteers, and intexns; devclop agency systems,
policies and prorocols; create and present community outreach presenations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12; provide on-czll coverage of cnsis line

Director: Haverhill Aren Javenile Diversion Progrom *

.. Woodsville, New Hampshire - 19995-200} : ’

Recruit, train, and supervise voluntees diversion committees; establish community-programming for
diverted youth; supporgve couaseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships berween the court
system, juvenile service oflicess, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file

" count teports on diverted youth; community outresch and cducagon

Coanselor/Title | Teocher: Norihern Family Insiitnte-Jellerson Shelter
Jetierson, New Wompahire  1096-1999 ' :
Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitste peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services 10 clients, supesvise and tutot youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

; \ - Edocation .
BS in Hamon Services, Springlicld College School of Homan Services, Boston, MA
Cdminal Justice Conceniration, Graduated with 40CrA

AS in Drug and Alechol Rehabilitotion Counseling (DARC Program) -
Soathern Connecticot Community Callege, New Baven, CT

S, X FOLCSSIONAOR F ~TLA L JLL RE (A XN] '.A'.I-'

Chairman, Bethlehem Boasd of Selecunen, Town of Bethlehen Twice Elecied 2006-2010
Chiirmas, Ares Allisnce of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Triaprer 1996.1998 8
Chaieman, Haverhill Aces Family Violence Council  1998-2003

Certified PRIME FOR LIFE, Impaired Driver Intervention Progrim lasmuctor #NH16199

Registered Scxual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the Stare of New Hampshire :

Board Member, Women's Rural Enucprcncurinl'thwurl 2014; ladividucl Member 2008-2017

Dethichem Phaning Board 2010 - 2015 .~

Bethichein Conservation Commission 2006 - wertal

Gronite Uniced Way, Nosth Country Cabinet Member  20/1-2012 p)

TCCAP: Commendaton- Division Director Award, 2011
Bethlehera Citizen's Advisory Corruriittee on Recycling  2007-2010
Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH  2000-2006

Small Business Qumer @ Aurora Energics 2075- oumens

Speakeisy Trio Jazz Voalist/ Sweet Jimem Swing Pand Jazz Vocalist 1997- current

Member, United States Figure Skadng Association/ International Skatiog Institute  averent since 1993
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RANDALL S. PILOTTE

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.

'

T

SUMMARY. )

16 years of experiencc managiog accounting professionals. Key compeiencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Paysbles - Inventory . " Fixed Assets
Payroll - . Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables . Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting s Cash Flow Management Audits ' : Forecasting

~ TRLCQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.; Berlio, NH 06/2013-Present

EXPERIENCE #

of

CFO (2017 - Present) Uy ;
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performence goals for the Agency and Lo

mainilein systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the .

financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of $18M.

.

Prepare/provides complete and ecurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agericy and putside
regulatory agencies. S . ' '

As & member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and cxecution: of comporate finance
policies, objectives and programs. ' 2 '

Prepares program and agency budgets in comjunction with the CEQ and Progrem Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and évaluate fisca) performance reviews of Tri-Counly CAPs divisions. ' :
Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the department; recommend promotions and salary

adjustments. )

Provides supervision and direction for the Fecilitics Mopagement Team, ensuring that all montgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP's facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.

Reviews cash flows for cach division, fonitor cash mansgement practices, and monitor investments associated
with each property. : W

Prepared five-year debt reduction plan. , "

Fiscal Director/Taterim CFO (2016 - 2017)

Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associsted with the general ledger, payroll, and eccounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets. i R
Prepare and supervise. the production of financial staiements including Balaoce Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cosl Sumsnaries on 8 monthly and snaual basis.

Maintain proper accounting controls oo grants and contributions 10 ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and suditors.

Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.

Collaborate with Division Directors 10 monitor deparimenta) revenue and expenses versus budget.

Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals. : : i | i

Prepare audit schedules for. external auditors.

o _ Collaborste with exiemal auditors in corapleting annual audit in a timely maaner.

Accountiog Maoager (2015-2016)

>

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014) 4o
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME: i ' 4

(=
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2

KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC, (£i/s Blue Seal Feeds, Inc), London&rry. NH ”' 03/1989-0972010
Asslstant Coatroller (2005-2010) ¥ '

« Ensured an sccurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nioc menufacturing plants and .1 | retsil stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibillitid included preparing joumal cafries, account
‘anslysis, inventory review and observalion, fixed assets, and depreciation. - . ) i

e Managed, trained, and supervised o steff accountant responsible for ensuring accursle journal entries; inventory
reconcilistion, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects. O .

s Oversaw all sspects of proprictary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 cmployees. Prepared all federal

- and stete payroll tax reports, including quanery and year-end retums, processing of W2s, and supervision of

payroll clerk.
Interfaced with |8 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic asea used as depositories.

Prepared mulli-statc sales/use tax returns end ected as point of contact for audits.

Pro-actively coached.and consulted plant and store management on the annusl budget development process.
Oversaw month-end aceruals.- ' ;
Assisted and responded to auditors’ requests on annuol audil.

Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropniste siates.

* Accoustiog Managér {1999-2005)
Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing i;ui;crvision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supervised arid trained two accounts payeble clerks on Chant of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate’
processing sad payment of vendor's invoices, employce trovel reimbursements, and standard accountiog praclices. -
Accovatent/Payroll Supervisor {1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994) .

NORTHERN TELECOM, ING,. Concord, NH 05/1987-03/1989
Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accouots Payable (1957-! 938)
EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, WW Concord, NH



Prafcmonal Summary

Sucmsful oversight of tie day
Energy Assmance Programs.

Experience:

Brenda-Gagne
Department Head, Economic Supports
Ioterim CPO
Tri County Community Action Program Inc.

*

to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAP s Transit, Guardmnshnp and

Tri County Community Action Program, Inc.

6!30!2020 Present -

Dcpartmcm Head, Economic Supports

6/5/2022 Interim CPO

Tri County CAP, Inc.
Trl County Traasit
31 Pieasant St.’
Berlin NH 03570
§72017 - 6/30/2020

Director of Transportation

Responsibilities include,

Overseeing the operations and edministrative functions of a social service transportation program serving Coos,
“Northem Grafton end Carroll Counties. '

Tri-County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit |
‘31 Pleasant St.

Berlin NH 03570
7/2004-5/2017

- Operations Manager
Rsponsnbllmes include;

*Running the daily operations o
*Facility Management.

f a public transit and para transit service.



*Gathering statistics

*Quarterly reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.

“*Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT ' R
*Weekly employee scheduhng. staff management. s

*Creating procedure manuals
*Grant writing

*Budget preparstion
*Writing Warrant Articles
*Drug & Alcoho! Testing
*Emergency Preparedness’

N

-

Mountaln Viilage Construction
P.0. Box 96
Milan, N.H, 03588

5/199S - 172004

Accounts Manager!Ofﬁoo Manager

Responsmnhhcs included;

*Customer service. .

* Accounting using Quick Books Pro.
*Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
*Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
*Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payeble,
*Creating and runmng Proﬁt and Loss chons 57
*Data Entry. t
*Phone cofmunications and general sccrelanal duties,

Milan Parks and Recuatlon Dcpt.

P.O. Box 300- p
Milag, N.H. 03588

6/1997 - 372002

-
.l

Parks and Recreation Director

Responsibilities included;
‘Dnrected and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, end Dummer, | :
*Development of new programs and year round activities.
. *Producing yearly budgets. :
*Equipment and materials purchosing.

*Organizing and supervising a large Volunteer staff.




i

*Working with the public to create new programs. ;
*Coordinating with the Milan Village School on athlctic and afler school programs.
* Applying for Federal and State Grants.

-.Edl_.lultlm.l: :

. Gradusate Gorham High School’
Gorham NH

Granite State College o " . o
Emergency Management i :

Southern New Harnpshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration

NHDOT Courses . X ' v
Fundamentals of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course :
Basics of Facilities Management Seminar (Facility Maintenance Plean), Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Workshop, Emergency. Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conference on Statemdc
Emergency Preparedness, Procurement for Smatl snd Medium Transit Systems. X

L]

Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
. Community Transportation Association of America*
June 2009

Certified Safety and Secunity Officer
. Community Tra.nsponauon Association of America
10/2010 | .

- Tri Slate Transit Conferencc
92007, I0f2008 IOI20IO 972011, 9/20[3 9/2014, 972016, 9/2017 -

Grant Writing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical College
Berdlin NH 1072005
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Georald F. Milliken, J_r.

Enthusiastic, dedicated and hardworking professional, offering aver 20 years of
broad-based’ experience in Project Diraction, policy and procadural development,
training & devetopmaent, budget administration and business opearations wilhin fast-
paced environment, ' 5 1

Tr-County Community Action Program, inc.
Department Head: Woatherization & Facilitles Operations

Berlin, NH -
7-1-2020 to present

Department. Observe, analyze, and offer suggestions on current operations.
Establishing professional retationships with clients, staff, and other stakeholders. .
Malntaining relationships with clients and finding creative ways to axpand the programs
effectiveness. ; )

Design and Operstional guidance of Weathserizatian Programs end the Agencies Facllitios

Tr-County Community Actlon Program, Inc.
Program Manager / Director: Weatharization & Employment Programs

Berlin, NH
4-1-13 10 6-31-2020

Provide teadershlp and oversight (o program’s operations, budgets and reporting: -
Coordingte end integrate programs’ activities. ) .

Hire, supervise and manage sialf, including in-house and ftinerdnt employees.

Prepare grants and proposals. 3 ;

Devalop, prepare and implement program budgets, namalives.

Review and recongile program financial reports for reimbursement. -

Intsract with program monitors, outside auditors, Federal agency auditors and others [n
review of program activities, compliance and financial accountabliity

Develop new programs and funding streams as appropriate,

Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc. ) .
. Crew Chlef/ State Certifled Energy Auditor Berlin, NH5105t0 4-1-15

-



Northern Express Eatery, Inc. North Conway, NH i
President | General Manager 11-1-2002 to-5-15-2005

Estimated food and beverage cosls, requisltloning and purchasing supplaes
Assisted subordinatas in identifying and resciving problems.

Conferred with food preparation and other personnel to plan menus and rela!ed
acllvities.

Directed hiring and assignmenl of personnel.

Investsgated and resolved food quality and service complaints. .-
Maintained all records and produced réports. .
Executed daily operations of restaurant management. E

Hatﬂeld-Reynolds ‘Etectric an IES, Inc. Company Phoenix, AZ

Project Manager 5-15-2000 to 10-30-2002 '

Applied knowledge of the consiruction trade in the dally operation of dutles.

Reviewed project proposals to determine time frame, funding limitetions, procedures

for Accomplishing project, staffing requirements and allotment of available resources
-to various phases of projects.

1SO Enterprisas, Inc.  Lake Havasu Clty, AZ

Prosident | GeneralManagor 8-1-1994 to 5-15-2000

Purchased ARTISAN ELECTRIC, INC. and changed the name.

Contracled to perform specifled construction work across the state of Arizons In
accordance with architact's plans, blueprints, codes and other specifications.
Estimated costs of materials, labor and use of equipment required to futfill provisions
of contract and prepared bids. . ‘

Confefred with clients to negotiste terms ol contract.

Assisted subardinates in identifying and resolving problems

Demonstrated affective presentation sknlls

1



Educatlbn: :
NHTI ' i Concord

Associates Degree in Electronic Technology - 1985
Theory . . '

" LRCC c ' ; Laconia
Electricat Systems Instaliation & Malntenance 1988
Required for Journeymen electrical testing and State

Ucenses e

Addltlonal Tmlnlng’

" 8 CUE training course for Grani writing for non- profi ls To enhance my pos:lron on the
beard of ! Children Unlimited, In¢. ..
Successiully completed GE's prestlglous “SIX SIGMA® managemenl course in'2001
+ Whils Employed with

Hatfigld-Reynolds Electric an IES. hc. Company Phoenix, AZ.

Successfully completed tralning courses and seminars for lead safework prac!ms.

asbestos awarenass, OSHA 30, CPR, eléctrical code updates .

Successfully complsted Business managemant classes inAZ

During the 1985-2001.

Successfully complaled training. and testing to be e NH Stete cerilﬂed Energy Auditor
*in 2006.

)
Communlty

Board mamber Children Unlimited, Inc Conway NH "Non- Profit”

" Board member Berfin Revilatization Committes. Berlin NH “Non- Profit®

Past member of the advisory board and co-designer for the Myotonic Dystmphy
Foundations first website.

‘Previous owner and webmaster for the Myoton!c Dystraphy Information websfle

License:

Held an Electrical Joumeyman license NH
Held an Electrical Contraclor License AZ

Ralerénces: Avallable upon requesl.

i3



Nathan H. Mills.

]

Operations Manager with atper!ence and overslite or Financial, Quality Assurance and Operations
components for non-profit organizations and small buslnesses Professlonal, flexible with proven
analytical skills, Demonstrated record of effective problem solving, sound.business judgement and
customer service.

¢ Business Development Planning & Budgeting 7 Staf and Sub-contractor Management
v Sigo/MIP Fund Accounting, GAAP & ROMA v Qlent & Vendor Relations
¥ Asset Management ¥ Yolunteer Relations
v  Extensive dally use of Mirossft Excel ¥ Certificate, LEAN Sk Sigma Green Belr, USM 2016
_ v Contract Negotiation, Administration & Compliance v Cartificate, Project Management, USM 2014 -
Division Operations Manager o ) Since April 2019

Tr-County Communtty Action Program, Betlln New Hampshlre

Operational, Administrative ang Fiscal oversite for Government and Udlity funded progr@ms that
provide home effidency, Insulation and heating system upgrades to income eligible househalds in
Carmoll, Coos and Grafton Countles, New Hampshire. =

« Operatianal ov'es:gm of Utllity HEA and MPwES, and Federa! DOE and DHHS low income Weathertzation, Heat System
" nepalr and replacement programs.
Ouusee 8B aspects of Program Operstions and Project Management Induding; program budget development and

suthorizition of expendRures sccording to contracted Inrdget agreements, dient eligibility and program compliance,
. hiring training, supervising and evaluating department staff. .

Inslde Production Manager _ .
TC Hafford Basement Systems, Wells, ME 2018

Insiie Production Mana;_:;er responsible for managing scheduling and dose out of dry basement
systems Installs.

« Uakson with hameowner throughout scheduting, Install and closeout processes. Lialson with sales team and Outside
* Production Managers to ensure proposal, installation and material costs met cllent expectations, company standards
#nd warmanty requirements for dry basement systems. :

Project Manager g

PATCO Construction, Sanford, ME 2016~2018 .
Project Manager responsible for managing residential home construction process throughout the
planning, scheduling, material procurement and oonstmction processes.

» Uatson to homeowner throughout entire construction pnxss from contract signing to dosing. Weeldy telephone
update and change order estimate and manzgement. Maintain master schedule on Bullder Trend project management
software. Schedule sub-contractors, inspect work to project spec., Issue rework and approva nvolaes ror payment.
Job oost overdte, mateﬂals ordering and nventory rnamqement.

Director, Housing and Energy Services . 2006 - 2016
The Opportunity Alllance; South Portland, ME .. .G ;

= ¥



- Business, Fiscal, Operat!onal and Gornpranoe responsibility for fe&erally funded programs that provide
home ene{gy and emergency assistance, HQS home repalr, and home effigency and insulation
upgrad income eligible households in Cumberiand and Yort County, Maine.

» Contract, Operztional and Fscal oversight of Feders! DOE and Dﬂrﬁ low income Wentherization, antral Heat
lmprovemen! and EMdency Maine Energy Conservation Programs.

Ow.rsce all sub—qrantee contractual responsibilties of dient intake, certification and benefit determination, program
integiity and compliance for Federal DHHS LINEAP Grant, providing home heating benefits to nppfmdrnm 3,500
tow-Income Cumberiand County househokds ennually.’

+ o 'Oversee all aspects of Program and Project Management induding:; chent e{)gihﬂlty and program compﬂance of NMLS
Licensed Agency Lending for HUD, MSHA, Maine DECD and Cumberiand County Community Development. Program -
funding supported home repalr, home renovation and enerw effidency upgredes of very low to moderate lAcomg
househoids In Cumbertand nd York County.

Business Manager . 2006 - 2009
SmertCatalog, Pordand, ME ;™

Managed all business activity for national catatoger providing Office of the Registrar course catalog
and other legally binding documents to colleges and unlverslues in the United States and Canada.

]

Accounting Assoclate . . 2004 - 2005
Southem Malne Agency on Aging, Scarborough, ME . v

Responsible for business office functions of APJAR and Payroll for non-profit agency. ln this position, |
was acoounting liaison for a variety of programs among others, and was responsible for accurate
. payroll pfOCESSlng for departments that operated 24/7/365

Retall Catzalog and Advertising Photographer 1998 - 2004 .

HowelHLid., Portignd, ME ‘

Managling studio photographer for New England's first digital commerdial photography studic .
responsible for project management, process workﬂow, and capadty and demand management.

Bachetor of Arts, Geography
Untversily of Maine, Fermington, 1883
{
Contlnulng Studies, Business, Accounting, Project Management and Human Resouroes
University of Southern Maine, ongoing

C(muum&emcz

Blddeford Schoot Committee, Vice Chairman

« Co-Chalmman, Currtoutum Committee; Flnance Committee; Personnel Comenittee; Chief Negotiator (Cdm =
Bargaining) Etected to conseculive 2 year terms in 2005 and 2008. Sorved durino period lhs! schogl system LY
undertook 8 $30 million doflar rencvation of Blddeford High School. :

Centra) America Volunteer work
Heredls, Costa Rica B S2n Bernadino Guatemala

« Travel to Costa Rica In 2006 & Guatemala In 2008 with a volunteer team to bulld 2 dmber lrame vu:nUona! center and
water filtration smm ;3

Referpaces ovatable upon request



